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1 1 1~ I L6pez-Vega,CPA, PSC 

Certified Public Accountants I Management Advisors 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
the Municipal Legislature 
Municipality of Cidra 
Cidra, Puerto Rico 

\leruber of: 
• American Institute of 

Certified Public Accountanb 
• Pue11o Rico Society of 

{.' c11ined Public .\ccounfants 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of Cidra, 
Puerto Rico (Municipality), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the 
Municipality's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are 
the responsibility of the Municipality's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business type-activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of Cidra, Puerto Rico, as of June 30, 
2012, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, thereof for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 19, 2013, 
on our consideration of the Municipality's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit . 

1 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and the budgetary comparison schedule on pages 3 through 12 and 56 be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with managemenf s responses to our inquiries, 
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because of the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Municipality of Cidra's financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures 
of Federal Awards, as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, is presented for purposes of additional analysis, and is 
not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements 
or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures 
of Federal Awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements. 

San Juan, Puerto Rico 
January 18, 2013 

Stamp No. 2632119 of the Puerto Rico 
Society of Certified Public Accountants 
was affixed to the record copy of this report. 

1 1 1~ I L6pez-Vega, CPA, PSC 

Certified PubJic Accountants I Management Advisors 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

This discussion and analysis of the Municipality of Cidra (the Municipality) financial performance provides an 
overview of the Municipality's financial activities for the fiscal year ended on June 30, 2012. This Management 
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) should be read in conjunction with the accompanying basic financial statements 
and the accompanying notes to those financial statements. Besides, this document includes comparative data 
with prior year as this information was available for the fiscal year ended on June 30, 2011. This MD&A is 
prepared in order to comply with such pronouncement and, among other purposes, to provide the financial 
statements users with the following major information: 

1. a broader basis in focusing important issues; 

2. acknowledgement of an overview of the Municipality's financial activities; 

3. provides for an evaluation of its financial condition as of the end of fiscal year 2011-2012 compared with 
prior year results; 

4. identification of uses of funds in the financing of the Municipality's variety of activities and; 

5. assess management's ability to handle budgetary functions. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The financial condition and results of operations as reflected in the financial statements prepared for fiscal year 
2012 constitute factual evidence of the Municipality's economic situation by the end of such year. The following 
comments deserve special mention: 

1. Total assets of the Municipality amounted to $100,911,832 which represents an increase of 3% 
compared to prior fiscal year. 

2. At the end of fiscal year 2012, total liabilities amounted to $47,565, 133. Out of said amount, $38,854,845 
corresponded to long-term liabilities of which $34,784,000 represented the outstanding balance of bonds 
and notes issued. The Municipality continued to meet all debt service requirements, most of which was 
paid from self-generated revenues. 

3. Total net assets of the Municipality amounted to $53,346,699 which represents an increase of 6% 
compared to prior fiscal year. 

4. Total revenues available for the financing of activities as reflected in the Statement of Activities amounted 
to $31,200,974 derived from the following sources: $402,654 from charges for services; $5,806, 138 from 
operating grants and contributions; $1,461,596 from capital grants and contributions obtained from other 
sources, and $23,530,586 from general revenues available. 

3 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED) 

5. Total expenses incurred to afford the cost of all functions and programs as reflected in the Statement of 
Activities amounted to $28,279,609. 

6. As reflected in the Statement of Activities, the current fiscal year operations contributed to an increase in 
the Net Assets figure by $2,921 ,365. 

7. As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's Governmental Funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $13,813,565. 

8. In the fund financial statements, the governmental activities revenue decreased $72,021 (or .2%); 
nevertheless governmental activities expenditures increased $1,030,919 (or 3%). 

9. As the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's general fund balance reflects a deficit of 
($1 ,053,391 ), compared to a fund balance of $54,546 in the prior fiscal year. 

10. The actual General Fund budgetary activities resulted in an unfavorable balance of ($990,509). 

FUNDAMENTALS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PRESENTATION 

The new approach used in the presentation of the financial statements of the Municipality is based on a 
government-wide view of such statements as well as a presentation of individual funds behavior during fiscal year 
2012. The combination of these two perspectives provide the user the opportunity to address significant 
questions concerning the content of said financial statements, and provide the basis for a comparable analysis of 

- future years performance. The comparative analysis is a meaningful and useful management tool for municipal 
management in the decision making process. 

Under the aforementioned approach, assets and liabilities are recognized using the accrual basis of accounting 
which is similar to the method used by most private enterprises. This means that current year's revenues and 
expenses are accounted for regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS COMPONENTS 

The basic financial statements consist of the government wide financial statements, the major funds financial 
statements and the notes to the financial statements which provide details, disclosure and description of the most 
important items included in said statements. 

The Statement of Net Assets reflects information of the Municipality as a whole on a consolidated basis and 
provides relevant information about its financial strength as reflected at the end of the fiscal year. 

4 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

This annual report consists of a series of new financial statements with a change in the focus from previous 
- financial statements. The new focus is on both the Municipality as a whole (government-wide) and the major 

individual funds. Both perspectives (government-wide and major fund) allow the user to address relevant 
questions, broaden a basis for comparison (year to year or government to government) and enhance the 
Municipality's accountability. 

- GOVERNMEMENT - WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Government-Wide Financial Statements are designed to provide users of the financial statements with a 
broad overview of the Municipality's finances in a manner similar to private-sector companies. 

The Statement of Net Asset presents information on all of the Municipality's assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between both reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a 
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Municipality is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Municipality's net assets changed during the 
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in 
the Statement of Activities that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. The Statement of Activities is 
focused on both the gross and net cost of various activities, which are provided by the government's general tax 
and other revenues. This is intended to summarize and simplify the user's analysis of cost of various 
governmental services. 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the Municipality's most significant funds, not 
- the Municipality as a whole. The Municipality has only one kind of fund which is the governmental fund. 

-

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in 
the Government Wide Financial Statements. However, unlike the Government Wide Financial Statements, 
Government Fund Financial Statements, focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well 
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information is useful in 
evaluating the Municipality's near term financial requirements. 

5 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government wide financial statements, it is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government wide financial statements. By doing so, users of the basic financial 
statements may better understand the long-term impact of the Municipality's near term financial decisions. Both 
of the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and 
governmental activities. 

INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS 

Historically, a government's largest group of assets (infrastructure-roads, bridges, underground pipes [unless 
associated with a utility), etc.) have not been reported nor depreciated in government financial statements. GASB 
34 requires that these assets be valued and reported within the Governmental column of the Government-Wide 
Statements. Additionally, the government must elect to either (a) depreciate these assets over their estimated 
useful life or (b) develop a system of asset management designed to maintain the service delivery potential to 
near perpetuity. If the government develops the asset management system (the modified approach) which 
periodically (at least every third year), by category, measures and demonstrated its maintenance of locally 
established levels of service standards, the government may record its cost of maintenance in lieu of 
depreciation. The information about the condition and maintenance of condition of the government infrastructure 
assets should assist financial statement users in evaluating a local government and its performance over time. 

According to the requirements of GASB 34, the government must elect to either (a) depreciate the 
aforementioned assets over their estimated useful life or (b) develop a system of asset management designed to 
maintain the service delivery to near perpetuity. If the government develops the asset management system, (the 
modified approach) which periodically (at least every three years), by category, measures and demonstrate its 
maintenance of locally established levels of service standards, the government may record its cost of 
maintenance in lieu of depreciation. In this particular respect, the Municipality has elected the use of recognizing 
depreciation under the useful life method and it contemplates to continue this treatment on said basis. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE 

Net Assets 

The Statement of Net Assets serves as an important indicator of the Municipality's financial position at the end of 
the fiscal year. In the case of the Municipality of Cidra, primary government assets exceeded total liabilities by 
$53,346,699 at the end of 2012, as compared with $50,425,334 which reflect an increase of $2,921,365 over 
previous fiscal year. The following condensed Statement of Net Assets of the Primary Government shows on a 
comparative basis the most important components of the $2,921,365 increase reflected in the Net Assets figure. 

6 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED) 

Condensed Statement of Net Assets 

Current and other assets 
Capital assets 

Total assets 

Current and other liabilities 
Long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Invested in capital assets. net of related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted deficit 

Total net assets 

120,000,000 

100,000,000 

80,000,000 

60,000,000 

40,000,000 

20,000,000 

s 

s 

2012 

23,021,051 
77.890,781 

100,911,832 

8,710,288 
38,854,845 

47,565, 133 

46,091,781 
14,646,845 
(7.391.927) 

53,346,699 

Total liabilities 

• 2012 • 2011 

2011 Change 

s 22,880,428 $ 140,623 
75,243,370 2,647.411 

98,123,798 2,788,034 

9,052,356 (342,068) 
38,646, 108 208,737 

47.698.464 (133,331) 

43,379,033 2,712,748 
13,968,634 678,211 
(6,922,333) (469,594) 

$ 50.425,334 s 2,921 ,365 

Total net assets 

% 
1% 
4% 

3% 

(4%) 
1% 

(.3%) 

6% 
5% 
(7%) 

6% 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED) 

Changes in Net Assets 

The Municipality's net assets increase by $2,921 ,365. Approximately fifty six percent (56%) of the Municipality's 
total revenue came from taxes, while forty one percent (41 %) resulted from grants and contributions, including 
federal aid. Charges for Services provided one percent (1%), Interest and Investment earnings (1%) and 
miscellaneous (1 %) of total revenues. The Municipality's largest expenses included items such as general 
government, health and welfare services, public works, community development and public safety. The following 
table and graphic presentation includes in absolute and relative terms, the composition of revenues and 
expenses for the fiscal years ended on June 30, 2011 and 2012. Such analysis helps the reader to evaluate the 
Municipal administration performance in the administration of its current financial operations. 

Condensed Statement of Activities 2012 2011 Chan~ % 

Program revenues: 

Charges for services $ 402,654 $ 313,645 $ 89,009 28% 

Operating grants and contributions 5,806, 138 5,493,325 312,813 6% 

Capital grants and contributions 1,461,596 990,000 471,596 48% 

General revenues: 

Property taxes 7,678,374 8,241,739 (563,365) (7%} 

Municipal sales and use tax 1,719,049 1,664,466 54,583 3% 

Municipal license tax 8,032,710 8,124,976 (92,266) (1%) 

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific 
programs 5,520,964 4,879,503 641,4S1 13% 

Interest and investment earnings 234,987 266,566 (31,579) (12%) 

Miscellaneous 344,502 339,661 4,841 1% 

Total revenues 31,200,974 30,313,881 887,093 3% 

Expenses: 

General government 13,069,586 13,067,259 (2,327) (.02%) 

Public safety 1,224,518 1,522,506 297,988 20% 

Public works 3,356,892 4,142,653 785,761 19% 

Culture and recreation 3,099,414 2,289,515 (809,899) (35%) 

Health and welfare 4,443,284 5,175,649 732,365 14% 

Economic development 261,676 206,547 (55, 129) {27%) 

Community development 1,429,691 1,103,631 (326,060) (30%) 

Education 68,729 2,747 (65,982) (2,402%) 

Interest on long-term debt 1,325,819 1,173,182 (152,637) (13%) 

Total expenses 28,279,609 28,683,689 404,080 1% 

Change in net assets 2,921 ,365 1,630, 192 1,291,173 79% 

Net assets, beginning of year 50,425,334 48,795,142 1,630,192 3% 

Net assets. end of year $ 53,346,699 $ 50,425,334 $ 2,921,365 6% 

8 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED) 

Revenues 2012 

1% 
1% I 1% 

Expenses 2012 
5% 

• General government • Community development • Public works 

• Health and welfare • Economic Development • Public safety 

• Charges for services 

• Operating grants and contributions 

• Capital grants and contributions 

• Property taxes 

• Municipal sales and use tax 

• Municipal license tax 

• Grants and contributions not 
restricted to specific programs 

• Interest and investment earnings 

Miscellaneous 

• Culture and recreation 

• Interest on long-term debt 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY'S INDIVIDUAL FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance 
related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the Municipality's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Municipality's financing 
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $13,813,565, a decrease of ($238,793) in comparison with the prior year. There are reservations of 
fund balance amounting to $13,813,565. The combined fund balances include restricted fund balances 
amounting to $14,795,361 . This is the portion of fund balance that reflects resources that are subject to externally 
enforceable legal restrictions 1) to pay for specific program purposes ($4,825,501); 2) to pay for capital projects 
($3,935,824); 3) to pay debt services ($6,034,036). There are committed fund balance amounting to $71 ,595 that 
can only be used pursuant to constraint formally imposed by the Municipal Legislature by ordinances and 
resolutions to pay for specific programs purpose. Consequently, since there is an excess of restricted and 
committed fund balances over total fund balances, a negative unassigned fund balance of ($1 ,053,391) was 
reported in the governmental funds at June 30, 2012. 

Governmental funds include the General Fund, which is the main operating fund of the Municipality. As of June 
30, 2012, the General Fund has accumulated deficit of ($1 ,053,391) compared with prior fiscal year with positive 
balance of $54,546. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

During fiscal year 2011-2012, the Municipal Legislature approved revisions to the operational budget that was 
- prepared in accordance to the analysis of previous year's results. Despite of the balance budget, the expected 

amounts of revenues were not collected, as reflected in exhibit, Budgetary Comparison Schedule-General Fund 
attached here to. The Municipality of Cidra current year operation had a deficiency of revenues over expenses 
of ($990,509). 

10 



-

-

-

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

The Municipality's investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2012, amounted to $111,462, 106 which upon 
deduction of accumulated depreciation in the amount of $33,571,325 produced a net book value attributable to 
capital assets in the amount of $77,890,781. Said investment includes land, construction in progress, buildings, 
improvements, equipment, infrastructure, furnishing, computers and vehicles. Infrastructure assets are 
composed of items such as roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting systems, and 
similar items. 

The total increase in the Municipality's investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year represented 
approximately four percent (4%) of net book value. Depreciation charges for the year totaled $2,570,771. 

The Municipality finances a significant portion of its construction activities through bond or notes issuances. The 
proceeds from bond and notes issuances designated for construction activities are committed in its entirety for 
such purposes and cannot be used for any other purposes. As of June 30, 2012, the Municipality has $4,048,479 
of proceeds from bond and notes issuances and other restricted assignments that are mainly committed to future 
construction activities in the Capital Project Fund- Local, State and Federal Grants. 

Debt Administration 

The Puerto Rico Legislative Assembly has established a limitation for the issuance of general obligation municipal 
bonds and notes for the payment of which the good faith, credit and taxing power of each municipality may be 
pledged. The applicable law also requires that in order for a Municipality to be able to issue additional general 
obligation bonds and notes, such Municipality must have sufficient "payment capacity" as defined in Act No. 64. 
Such Act requires a Municipality must has sufficient "payment capacity" to incur additional general obligation debt 
if its deposits in the Redemption Fund and the annual amounts collected with respect to such Municipality's 
Special Additional Tax (as defined below), as projected by GOB, is sufficient to service to maturity the 
Municipality's outstanding general obligation debt and the additional proposed general obligation debt. 

The Municipality is required under prevailing applicable law to levy a Special Additional Tax in such amounts as 
shall be required for the payment of its general obligation municipal bonds and notes. In addition, principal of and 
interest on all general obligation municipal bonds and notes and on all municipal notes issued in anticipation of 
the issuance of general obligation bonds issued by the Municipality constitute a first lien on the Municipality's 
Basic Tax revenues. Accordingly, the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues would be available to make debt service 
payments on general obligation municipal bonds and notes to the extent that the Special Additional Tax levied by 
the Municipality, together with moneys on deposit in the Municipality's Redemption Fund, are not sufficient to 
cover such debt service. In the particular case of the Municipality of Cidra, it has never been necessary to apply 
Basic Taxes to pay debt service on general obligation debt of the Municipality. 

11 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The Municipality relies primarily on property and municipal taxes as well as federal and state grants to carry out 
the governmental activities. Historically, property and municipal taxes have been very predictable with increases 
of approximately five percent. Federal and State grant revenues may vary if new grants are available, but the 
revenue can be also predictable. Those factors were considered when preparing the Municipality's budget for the 
fiscal year 2012-2013. 

FINANCIAL CONTACT 

The Municipality's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayer, customers, investors 
and creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality's finances and to demonstrate the Municipality's 
accountability. If you have questions about the report or need additional financial information, contact the 
Municipality's Chief Financial Officer. 

12 



Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Municipality of Cidra 

Statement of Net Assets 
June 30, 2012 

Primary Government 

Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,993,833 $ 120,209 $ 12.114,042 
Cash with fiscal agent 9.867,293 9,867,293 
Accounts receivable: 

Municipal license tax 9,824 9,824 
Intergovernmental 461 ,301 461 ,301 
Others 350,576 218,015 568,591 

Capital assets: 
Land, improvements and oonstruction in progress 24,343,099 600,000 24,943,099 
Buildings, infrastruture and other capital assets, 
net of depreciation 47,347,244 5,600,438 52,947,682 
Total capital assets 71,690,343 6,200,438 77,890,781 

Total assets 94,373,170 6,538,662 100,91 1,832 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,527,674 1,527,674 
Due to other governmental entities 319,736 319,736 
Deferred revenues: 

Municipal license tax 6,506, 115 6,506.115 
Federal grant revenues 21,956 21,956 
Interest payable 302,327 302,327 
Others 32,480 32,480 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Due within one year 2,406,458 371,000 2,777,458 
Due in more than one year 30,799,387 5,278,000 36,077,387 

Total liabilities 41,613,806 5,951,327 47,565,133 

Net Assets 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 45,540,343 551,438 46,091,781 
Restricted for: 

Capital projects 3,898.514 3,898,514 
Debt service 6,034,036 6,034,036 - Other purposes 4.714,295 4,714,295 

Unrestricted (deficit) (7.427,824) 35,897 (7,391,927) 

Total net assets s 52,759,364 $ 587,335 $ 53,346.699 

-
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 13 



Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Municipality of Cidra 

Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Net (Eicpense) Revenue and 

P~ram Revenues C!!!!!its in Net Assets 

Operating Capital Pri~ Government 

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type 

Functions/Programs Expenses SllVices Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total 

Ge!Jeral goyemment 12,870,687 s 96,292 s 1.002,551 s s (11,nl.844) s s (11n1.844} 

Public salety 1,224,518 2,801 109,369 (1.112.348) (1 ,112,348) 

Publicworu 3,356,892 2,441 ,299 1,461,596 546,003 546,003 

Health and weKare 4.443,284 1,720,842 (2,722,442) (2,722,442) 

Cult\Jre and recreaoon 3,099,414 61,047 532,077 (2,506,290) (2,506,290) 

Economic development 261,676 (261,676) (261,676) 

Community~! 1,429,691 (1,429,691) (1 ,429,691) 

Education 68,729 (68,729) (68,729) 

lnlerest on long-1enn debt 1,023,492 (1,023,492) (1 ,023,492) 

Total governmental activities s 27,778,383 s 160,140 $ 5,806,138 $ 1,461,596 (20,350,509) (20,350,509) 

Business type activities: 
General govemnent 198,899 (198,899) (198,899) 

Economic dellelol)ment 242,514 242,514 242,514 
Interest on long tenn debt 302,327 (302 327) !302,327) 

Total business type activities 501,226 242,514 (258,712) !258,712) 
Total pMiaty government $ 28,279,609 402,654 s 5,806,138 $ 1,461,596 (20,350,509) (258,712) (20,609,221) 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 7,678.374 7,678,374 

Municipal license tax 8.032,710 8,032,710 

Municipal sales and use tax 1,719,049 1,719,049 

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 5,520.964 5,520,964 

Interest and investtnent eamilgs 234.987 234.987 
MiscellanEous 344,502 344,502 

Transfers (665,996) 665,996 

Total general revenues and transfetS 22,864,590 665,996 23,530,586 

Change in net assets 2,514,081 407,284 2.921 ,365 

Net assels -beginnllg 50,245.283 180,051 50.425,334 

Net asse1S - endilg $ 52.759,364 $ 587.335 $ 53,346,699 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 14 



Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Municipality of Cidra 

Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2012 

Special Revenue Capltal Projects Other Total 
General Fund·(02) State Debt Service Fund-(20 & 21) Governmental Governmental 

Fund-(01) & Federal Grants Fund ·(10 & 11) State & Federal Grants Funds Funds 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,902,987 s 3,095,924 s s 2,734,160 s 260,762 s 11,993,833 
Cash wi1h fiscal agent 2,518,938 6,034,036 1,314,319 9,867,293 
Accoun1s receivable: 

Municipal licellses lax 9,824 9,824 
lnle!gOvernmental 4S1,301 461,301 

Other 29,942 26,266 294,368 350,576 
Due from otllel funds 482,234 145,282 161,283 788,799 

Total assets 6,886,288 s 5,760,144 $ 6,034,036 s 4,236,028 s 555,130 $ 23,471,626 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabiities s 630,954 688.798 s s 93.713 s 114.209 s 1,527,674 

Due IO othei governmental en~ties 319,736 319.736 
Due to other funds 21 ,573 339,476 206,491 221,259 788,799 
Deferred revenues: 

Munripal license lax 6,506,115 6.506, 115 
Federal granl revenues 21,956 21,956 
lnlergovemmental 461,301 4S1,301 

Others 25,999 6.481 32.480 

Total liabilities 7,939,679 1.054,273 300,204 363,905 9,658,061 

Fund balances: 

Res11icted 4,634,276 6,034,036 3,935,824 191,225 14,795,361 
Committed 71 ,595 71 ,595 
Unassigned (1,053,391) (1 ,053,391) 

Total fund balances (deficit) (1,053,.391) 4,705,871 6,034,036 3,935.824 191,225 13,813,565 

Total liabilities and fund balances s 6,886,288 s 5,760,144 s 6,034.036 s 4,236,028 s 555,130 s 23,471,626 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 15 
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Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Municipality of Cidra 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Special Revenue Capital Projects Other Total 

General Fund-{02) State Debt Service Fund-(20 & 21) Governmental Governmental 

Fund-{01) & Federal Grants Fund -{10 & 11) State & Federal Grants Funds Funds 

Revenues 

Pl'Operty laxes s 4,586388 s s 2.630,685 s s s 7,217,073 

Municipal sales and use tax 1,182,342 536,707 1,719,049 

Municipal license laxes 8,032,710 8,032,710 

Uc:enses,pennlts and Oll\er Joca laxes 576.lll4 576,804 

Charges for services 33,258 63,034 96,292 

Intergovernmental 4,944,160 1,639.579 6,583,739 

Fines and forfeiture; 61 ,047 61 ,047 

Rent of propeny 2,801 2,801 

Interest 234,954 33 234,987 
H!deral grants 1,620.304 2.901,164 4,521 ,468 

Miscellaneous 344,502 24,533 6,700 375,735 

Tolal revenues 18,816.624 4,529,792 3,167,392 33 2.907,864 29,421,705 

Expenditures 

Current 
General government 10,044,980 2,857,536 13,867 12,916,383 

Public safety 1,435,005 561 1,435,566 

Public WOlks 4,072.358 262,589 1,159.912 5,494,859 

Health and welfare 2,554,297 657,428 1,209,625 4,421,350 

Culture and recrealioo 1,060,341 1,814,653 2,874,994 

Economic development 261,676 261,676 

Community development 152,047 1,022,211 1, 174,258 

Educaoon 63,937 4,792 68,729 

Debt seMc:e: 
Principal 1,330,000 1,330,000 

lntere>t 1,023,492 1,023,492 

..... 
Total expencjtules 19,428.657 5,808,751 2,353,492 1,159,912 2,250,495 31 ,001,307 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues eve< 

(undel) expenditure> (612,033) (1.278,959) 813,900 (1,159,879) 657,369 (1,579,602) 

Other financing sources (uses) 

Transfers in 488,404 7,500 495,904 - T ranslers out (495,904) (665,996) (1,161,900) 

Long-term debt Issued 2,015,000 2,015,000 

Bond Issuance costs (8,195) (8,195) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (495,904) 2.006.805 488,404 7,500 (665,996) 1,340,809 

Net change in lund balances 

\\~~ 
(1, 107,937) 727,846 1,302,304 (1.152,379) (8,627) (238,793) 

Fund balance, beginning 54.546 3,978,025 4,731,732 5,088.203 199.852 14,052,358 
Fund balance (deficit), ending (1,053,391) s 4.705,871 s 6,034,036 3,935,824 191,225 s 13,813,565 

t?\Jt~-

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of th is statement. 16 



Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Municipality of Cidra 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet· Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Net Assets 

June 30, 2012 

Total Fund Balances· Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Assets 

are different because: 

Capital Assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore, 

are not reported in the funds. In the current period, these amounts are: 

Non Depreciable Capital Assets 

Depreciable Capital Assets 

Accumulated Depreciation 

Total Capital Assets 

Some of the Municipality's revenues will be collected after year end but are not available 
soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures and therefore. are recognized as 

deferred in the government wide financial statements: 

Municipal Revenue Collection Center 

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore, are not 
reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of: 

General Bonds and Notes Payable 
Property Taxes Debt 

Compensated Absences 

Landfill Obligation 

Total Long-Tenn Liabilities 

Total Net Assets of Governmental Activities 

$ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

24,343.099 
79,770,828 

(32,423,584) 

29,135,000 
19,458 

3,427,387 

624.000 

s 

$ 

13,813,565 

71,690,343 

461,301 

(33,205,845) 

52,759,364 
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Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Municipality of Cidra 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of 

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Net Change in Fund Balances · Total Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because: 

Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Changes in 
Net Assets, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount of capital 
assets recorded in the current period. 

Capital assets received as a donation are not recorded in the Governmental Funds, because current financial resources are not 
involved; however, the transaction must be reflected in the Government-Wide Financial Statements based on the fair value of the 
donated property. This is the amount of donated capital assets recorded in the current period. 

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the Government-Wide Statements of Activities and Change in Net Assets, but 
they do not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is not reported as expenditures in 
Governmental Funds. 

Disposal of capital assets require removal of cost of the capital assets from the capital asset account on the Government-Wide 
Statement of Net Assets, resulting in a loss on disposal of capital assets on the Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Change 
in Net Assets. 

Bonds and notes proceeds provide current financial resources to Governmental Funds. Repayment of bonds and notes principal is an 
expenditure in Governmental Funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets. 
This is the amount for debt service principal payments. 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to Governmental Funds, while the repayment of principal of long· 
term debt consumes current financial resources. This is the amount for debt proceeds. 

Some revenues reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported as revenues in Governmental Funds. 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported as expenditures in Governmental Funds. 

Repayment of long term Land Information Management System (LIMS) debt is an expenditure in Governmental Funds, but the 
repayment reduces long term LIMS debt in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets. This is the amount paid in the current 
period. 

Change in landfill accrual 

Long-term compensated absences are reported in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets, but they 
do not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, long-term compensated were not reported as expenditures in 
Governmental Funds. The following amount represents the change in long-term compensated absences from prior year. 

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

$ 

s 

(238,793) 

4,211,602 

1,075,455 

(2,371,872) 

(68,875) 

1,330,000 

(2,015,000) 

461,301 

9,720 

50,580 

47,000 

22,963 

2,514,081 
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Assets 
Current Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Accounts Receivable 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Capital Assets: 

Land 
Building 
Machinery and equipment 

Accumulated depreciation 

Total non-current assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 

Current Liabilities: 

Commonweath of Puerto Rico 
Municipality of Cidra 

Statement of Net Assets 
Proprietary Fund-Business Type Activity· Enterprise Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2012 

HUD Section 108 Loans Guarantee-Principal 

Interest payable 

Total currenl liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Long Tenn Liabil~ies: 

HUD Section 108 Loan Guarantee 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 

Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

The notes lo the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Business Type 

Activitiy 

Enterprise 

$ 120,209 

218,015 

338,224 

600,000 

6,576,754 
171,425 

(1, 147,741} 

6,200,438 

6,538,662 

371,000 
302,327 

673,327 

5,278,000 

5,278,000 

5,951 ,327 

551,438 
35,897 

$ 587,335 
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Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Municipality of Cidra 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 
Proprietary Fund • Business Type Activity· Enterprise Fund 

Year Ended June 30 2012 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Depreciation and amortization 

Total operating expenditures 

Operating income (Loss) 

Non-operating revenues (expenses): 
Interest expense 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 

Income (loss} before transfers 

Transfers from Governmental Activities 

Change in Net Assets 
Total net assets-beginning 

Total net assets-ending 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

$ 

$ 

Business ·Type 

Activities 
Enterprise 

242,514 

242,514 

198,899 

198,899 

43,615 

(302,327) 

(302,327) 

(258,712) 

665,996 

407,284 
180,051 

587,335 
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Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Municipality of Cidra 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Fund • Business Type Activity· Enterprise Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 

Receipts from Customers 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 

Principal paid on capital debt 
Interest paid 

Transfer in from the Governmental Activities 

Net Cash Provided (Used) in Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Balance-beginning of the year as restated 

Balance-end of the year 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided (Used} b~ 

Operating Activities: 

Operating profit 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities: 

Depreciation expense 

Changes in assets: 

Accounts receivable 

Total Adjustments 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities: 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

$ 24,499 

24,499 

(346,000) 
(319,996) 

665,996 

95,710 

120,209 

$ 43,615 

198,899 

(218,015) 

(19,116) 

$ 24,499 

none 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Municipality of Cidra (the Municipality) was founded on the year 1917. The Municipality's 
governmental system consists of an executive and legislature body. It is governed by a Mayor and a 
sixteen member Municipal Legislature who are elected for a four-year term. 

The Municipality provides public safety, public works, culture and recreation, health and welfare, urban 
development, education, economic development, and other miscellaneous services. 

The basic financial statements of the Municipality have been prepared in conformity with Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles as applied to local governmental units in the United States of America (US 
GAAP). 

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASS) issued Statement No. 34, "Basic 
Financial Statements and Management's and Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments." 
This Statement, known as the Reporting Model, provides for the most significant change in financial 
reporting for state and local governments in over 20 years and affects the way the Municipality prepares 
and presents financial information. The Statement was adopted as of July 1, 2002. In addition to this 
Statement, GASS Statement No. 37, "Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and 
Analysis for State and Local Governments: Omnibus" and GASS Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial 
Statement Note Disclosures" have been adopted and are reflected in these financial statements. 

As part of this Statement, there is a new reporting requirement regarding the capitalization of local 
government infrastructure (roads, bridges, traffic signals, etc.). This requirement permits an optional four­
year delay for implementation to fiscal year ended on June 30, 2007. The Municipality implemented the 
capitalization of infrastructure since July 1, 2002. 

In March 2009, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASS Statement No.55, The Hierarchy of 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments (GASS No. 55), and GASS 
Statement No. 56, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in the A/CPA 
Statements on Auditing Standards (GASB No. 56). 

GASS No. 55 incorporated the hierarchy of USGAAP for state and local governments into the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASS) authoritative literature. The requirements in this 
Statement codify all USGAAP for state and local governments so that they derive from a single source. 

GASS No. 56 incorporated into the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASS) authoritative 
literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance presented in the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants' Statements on Auditing Standards. This Statement addressed three issues 
not included in the authoritative literature that establishes accounting principles-related party transactions, 
going concern considerations, and subsequent events. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

In fiscal year 2011 , the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASS Statement No. 54, Fund Balance 
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASS No. 54), which modified the interpretations of 
certain terms within the definition of the special revenue funds and the types of activities the Municipality 
may choose to report in those funds. GASS No. 54 also clarified the capital projects fund type definition for 
better alignment with the needs of preparers and users. Definitions of other governmental fund types were 
also modified for clarity and consistency. 

The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies of the Municipality: 

A. Component Units 

In evaluating how to define the Municipality for financial reporting purposes, management has 
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the 
reporting entity was made by applying the provisions of Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting 
Entity, of the GASS, as amended by the GASS Statement No. 39, "Determining Whether Certain 
Organizations Are Component Units an amendment of GASS Statement 14". The basic, but not the 
only criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is if elected officials of a 
primary government are financially accountable for the entity. Financial accountability exists if the 
primary governmental appoints a voting majority of the entity's governing body, and if either one of the 
following conditions exist: the primary government can impose its will on the other entity or the potential 
exists for the other entity to (1) provide specific financial benefits to or (2) impose specific financial 
burdens on the primary government. A second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is 
if the nature and significance of the relationship between the entity and a primary government are such 
that to exclude the entity from the financial reporting entity would render the financial statements 
misleading or incomplete. Based on the above criteria, the Municipality does not have component units 
to include within its reporting entity. 

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements 

Financial information of the Municipality is presented in this report as follow: 

1. Management's discussion and analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides an 
analytical overview of the Municipality's financial activities. 

2. The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net assets and the statement of 
activities) report information on all the activities of the Municipality and its component units, if any. 
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are 
reported separately from business-type activities, if any, which rely to a significant extent on fees and 
charges for support. lnterfund activity has been removed from these statements to minimize the 
duplicating effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental activities. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements (continued) 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 
or segment is offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that are charges to customers or 
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a 
given function or segment and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational 
or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly 
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

3. Fund financial statements focus on information about the Municipality's major governmental funds. 
Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial 
statements. Pursuant to the provisions set forth by GASS No. 54, the Municipality reported the 
following governmental funds in the accompanying GFFS: 

General Fund (01 ) - is the Municipality main operating fund used to account for and report all 
financial and reported resources and governmental activities, except for those required to be 
accounted for in another fund. It is presumed that the Municipality's governmental activities have 
been reported in the general fund except for transactions for which one of the following compelling 
reasons has required the use of another fund: (1) legal requirements, (2) USGAAP requirements or 
(3) the demands of sound financial administration requiring the use of a governmental fund other 
than the general fund. Its revenues consist mainly of taxes, licenses and permits, intergovernmental, 
charges for services and other. 

Special Revenue Funds-State and federal grants (02) - is a major governmental fund used to 
account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than trusts for individuals, 
private organizations, or other governments or for major capital projects) that are legally restricted or 
committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects. 
Resources restricted or committed to expenditure for purposes normally financed from the general 
fund are generally accounted for in the general fund provided that all applicable legal requirements 
can be appropriately satisfied and the use of special revenue funds is not required unless they are 
legally mandated. 

Debt Service Fund (1 O & 11 ) - is a major governmental fund used to account for and report for the 
accumulation of financial resources that are restricted for, and the payment of, principal and interest 
for: (1) bonds payable for which debt service payments are legally mandated to be accounted for in 
a debt service fund and (2) certain special long-term obligations for which the Municipality is been 
accumulating financial resources in advance to pay principal and interest payments maturing in 
future years. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements (continued) 

The outstanding balance of certain general long-term obligations for which debt service payments 
do not involve the advance accumulation of resources (such as certain notes payable, obligations 
under capital leases, accrued compensated absences, landfill obligation, claims and judgments, net 
pension liability and other long-term obligations) are only accounted for in the accompanying 
statement of net assets. The debt service payments of such obligations are generally accounted for 
in the governmental fund which accounted for the financial resources used for the payment of such 
debts. Principal and interest due on July 1 of the following fiscal year are accounted for as a fund 
liability, if resources are available as of June 30 for its payment. 

Capital Projects Funds (20 & 21) - is a major governmental fund used to account for and report 
financial resources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for capital outlays, including the 
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, including those outlays financed by the general 
obligation bond proceeds (other than those financed by proprietary funds or in trust funds for 
individuals, private organizations, or other governments). The use of the capital projects funds has 
been limited to only for major capital acquisitions, construction or improvement activities that would 
distort financial resources trend data if not reported separately from the other Municipality's 
operating activities. The routine purchases of minor capitalizable assets (such as furniture, office 
equipment, vehicles and other minor capital assets or improvements) have been reported in the 
governmental fund from which financial resources were used for the payment. 

The other governmental funds of the Municipality account for grants and other resources whose use 
is restricted to a particular purpose. 

4. Proprietary Fund Types focus on report any activities for which a fee is charged to external users for 
good or services. The Municipality reports the following proprietary fund: 

Enterprise Fund - The Enterprise Fund, which was established in April 2007, is used to account for 
operations (1) that are financed and operated in a similar manner as private business enterprises 
where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of 
providing goods and services to the general public on a continuing basis, are financed or recovered 
primary through uses, charges; or (2) where the governing body has decided that periodic 
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital 
maintenance, public policy, accountability, or other purpose. The enterprise fund of the Municipality 
includes land and buildings known as "Hotel Treasure Island" located in "Ave. Las Americas, 
Bayamon at Cidra, Puerto Rico. The source of income comes from rent received from rent received 
from facility of "Hotel Treasure Island". 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements (continued) 

5. The notes to the financial statements provide information that is essential to a user's understanding 
of the basic financial statements. 

6. Required supplementary information such as the budgetary comparison schedule-general fund and 
other types of data required by GASS. 

7. Notes to the budgetary comparison schedule-general fund. 

C. Financial reporting presentation 

The accounts of the Municipality are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a 
separate accounting entity, and discrete presentations of enterprise fund. The operations of each fund 
are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund 
equity, revenues, and expenditures. 

Government has established the following fund categories, fund types, account group and discrete 
presentation of enterprise fund: 

Governmental Fund Types 

General Fund - Is the general operating fund of the Municipality. It is used to account for all 
governmental activity, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Special Revenue Fund - local and State Grants - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for 
revenues derived from local funds, state grants or other restricted revenue sources. The uses and 
limitations of each special revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state 
statutes. 

Special Revenue Fund - Section 8 - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenues 
derived from section 8 choice voucher program. The uses and limitations of each special revenue 
fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes. 

Special Revenue Fund - Federal Grants - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenues 
derived from federal grants. The uses and limitations of each special revenue fund are specified by 
Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes. 

Capital Projects Fund - State and Federal Grants - Capital Projects Fund are used to account for 
financial resources used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. 

Debt Service Fund - Debt Service Fund are used to account for the accumulation of resources for 
and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. 
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

C. Financial reporting presentation 

Special Revenue Fund - Other Federal Grants - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for 
revenues derived from federal grants. The uses and limitations of each special revenue fund are 
specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes. 

Proprietary Fund Types 

Enterprise Fund - The enterprise fund statements consist of State of Net Assets, Statement of 
Activities and Statement of Cash Flows. This fund accounts for exchange like transactions, like private 
enterprise and its operations are intended to be self supporting through charges to users. These 
statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus, which concentrates on 
an entity or fund's net assets. 

All transactions and events that affect the total economic resources (net assets) during the period are 
reported. The statements are reported on the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized in the period earned and expenses recognized in the period in which the associated 
liability is incurred. 

D. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial presentation 

Government-wide financial statements - The accompanying GWFS are prepared using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Subject to the additional rules and 
limitations detailed below, revenues (including interest on deposits and investments) are generally 
recorded when earned and expenses are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of 
the timing of related cash flows. 

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange-like transactions 
are generally recorded when exchange takes place. In exchange transactions, each party to the 
transaction receives and gives up essentially equal values. An exchange-like transaction is one when 
there is an identifiable exchange and the values exchanged, though related, may not be quite equal. 
The accompanying basic financial statements include exchange-like transactions such as license fees, 
fines, penalties, forfeitures, permits, charges for services, and most miscellaneous revenues, which are 
recorded as revenues when collected because they are generally not measurable until actually received. 

The Municipality groups its non-exchange transactions into the following four (4) classes in the 
accompanying basic financial statements: (a) derived tax revenues, (b) imposed non-exchange 
revenues, (c) government mandated non-exchange transactions, and (d) voluntary non-exchange 
transactions. 
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial presentation (continued) 

In the case of derived tax revenue transactions, which result from assessments that the Municipality 
places on exchange transactions, receivables and revenues are recorded when the underlying 
exchange has occurred. 

In the case of imposed non-exchange revenue transactions (such as property taxes and municipal 
license taxes), which result from assessments made by the Municipality on non-governmental entities, 
including individuals, other than assessments on exchange transaction, receivables are generally 
recorded in the period when an enforceable legal claim has arisen. Property taxes and municipal license 
taxes are generally recorded as revenues (net of amounts considered not collectible) in the fiscal year 
when resources are required to be used for the first fiscal year that the use of the resources is permitted. 

For government-mandated non-exchange transactions (such as intergovernmental grants and 
contributions), receivables and revenues are generally recorded when all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met. For the majority of grants, the Municipality must expend 
resources on the specific purpose or project before the provider reimburses any amounts. Therefore, 
revenue is generally recognized as qualifying reimbursable expenditures are incurred. 

For voluntary non-exchange transactions (such as donations and certain grants and entitlements) 
receivables and revenues are generally accounted for in the same manner as government-mandated 
non-exchange transactions discussed above. 

Events that are neither exchange nor non-exchange transactions are recorded when it is probable that a 
loss has been occurred and the amount of loss is reasonably estimated. 

Interests on deposits are recorded when earned since these revenues are considered both measurable 
and available at June 30, 2012. Receipts of any type of revenue sources collected in advance for use in 
the following fiscal year are recorded as deferred revenues. 

According to GASB No. 34, all general capital assets and the unmatured long-term liabilities are 
recorded only in the accompanying Statement of Net Assets. The measurement focus and the basis of 
accounting used in the accompanying GWFS differ significantly from the measurement focus used in the 
preparation of the GFFS. Therefore, the accompanying GFFS include reconciliations, as detailed in the 
accompanying table of contents, to better identify the relationship between the GWFS and the GFFS. 
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial presentation (continued) 

Government Fund Financial Statements - The accompanying GFFS are reported using the current 
financial resources measurements focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
generally recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to 
be available when they are collectible within the current fiscal year or soon enough thereafter to pay 
liabilities of the current fiscal year. For this purpose, the Municipality generally considers most revenues 
(municipal licenses taxes, construction excise taxes, sales and use taxes, interests on deposits, 
intergovernmental grants and contributions and certain charges for services) to be available if collected 
within sixty (60) days after June 30, 2012. At June 30, 2012, all revenues sources met this availability 
criterion. 

Property taxes are all considered susceptible to accrual if commonly collected within sixty (60) days 
following the end of the fiscal period, unless unusual circumstances justify a greater period. 

Other revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual include municipal license taxes, sales and use 
taxes, construction excise taxes, intergovernmental grants and contributions, interests on deposits and 
charges for services. These principal revenue sources meet both measurability and availability criteria in 
the accompanying GFFS. 

In a manner similar to the GWFS, but subject to and limited by the availability criteria discussed above, 
all revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange, exchange-like 
transactions are also generally recorded when the exchange takes place while all revenues, expenses, 
gains, losses, and assets resulting from non-exchange transactions are recorded when an enforceable 
legal claim arises or when all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met, applicable. 

Interests on deposits are recorded when earned since these revenues are considered both measurable 
and available at June 30, 2012. 

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement of Certain 
Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements (GASBI No. 6), in the absence 
of an explicit requirement (i.e., the absence of an applicable modification, discussed below) the 
Municipality generally accrues a governmental fund liability and expenditure (including salaries, 
professional services, supplies, utilities, etc.) in the period in which the government incurs the liability, to 
the extent that these liabilities are normally expected to be liquidated in a timely manner and in full with 
current available financial resources. The accompanying Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 
generally reflects only assets that will be converted into cash to satisfy current liabilities. Long-term 
assets and those assets that will not be converted into cash to satisfy current liabilities are generally not 
accounted for in the accompanying Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds. At the same time, long-term 
liabilities (generally, those unmatured that will not require the use of current financial resources to pay 
them) are not accounted for in the accompanying Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds. 
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial presentation (continued) 

The measurement focus of the GFFS is on decreases of net financial resources (expenditures) rather 
than expenses. Most expenditures are measurable and are recorded when the related governmental 
fund liability is incurred. Allocation of costs, such as depreciation and amortization, are recorded in the 
accompanying Statement of Activities, but are not recorded in the accompanying GFFS. 

E. Assets, liabilities and net assets 

1. Cash and cash equivalents, and cash with fiscal agent - The Municipality's cash and cash 
equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with 
original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

Cash with fiscal agent in the debt service fund represents special additional property tax collections 
retained by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and restricted for the payment of the Municipality's 
debt service, as established by law. Also, cash with fiscal agent consists of unused proceeds of 
bonds and notes issued for the acquisition of equipment and construction of major capital 
improvements. 

2. Receivables and payables- Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing 
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other 
funds" (i.e. , the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non­
current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as 
"due to/from other funds." 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, if any, are offset by a fund 
balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for 
appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. 

Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which are 
determined, based upon past collection experience and current economic conditions. 
Intergovernmental receivables in the General Fund represent mostly contributions from the Puerto 
Rico Electric Power Authority, which contribute a specific percentage of their revenues as payment 
in lieu of taxes. Intergovernmental receivable in the special revenue fund represent amounts owed 
to the Municipality for reimbursement of expenditures incurred pursuant to federally funded 
programs. 

3. Inventories - Inventories in the general fund is recorded as expenditure and, consequently, the 
inventory is not recorded in the statement of net assets. 
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

E. Assets, liabilities and net assets (continued) 

4. Capital assets - Capital assets, which include property, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., 
roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the governmental activities column in 
the governmental-wide financial statements. The Municipality defines capital asset as assets with 
an initial, individual cost of more than $25 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such 
assets are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. 
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are 
capitalized as projects are constructed. 

Capital assets of the Municipality are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful lives: 

Description 

Buildings and site improvements 
Infrastructure 
Works of art 
Vehicles 
Furniture and fixtures 
Machinery and equipment 

Useful Life 

40 years 
40 years 
10 years 
5 years 
5 years 

3 to 5 years 

Capitalization threshold 

$1 
$1 
$1 
$1 

$25 
$25 

5. Deferred revenues - In the GFFS, deferred revenues arises when one of the following situations 
occur: 

a. Potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for revenue 
recognition in the current period (unavailable revenue). As previously discussed, available is 
defined as due (or past due) at June 30, 2012 and collected within 60 days thereafter to pay 
obligations due at June 30. In subsequent periods, when both criteria are met, the liability for 
deferred revenue is removed and revenue is recognized. 

b. The Municipality receives resources before it has a legal claim to them (unearned revenue). In 
subsequent periods, when the revenue recognition criterion is met, the liability for deferred 
revenue is removed and revenue is recognized. 

Deferred revenues at the government-wide level arise only when the Municipality receives 
resources before it has a legal claim to them. 
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

E. Assets, liabilities and net assets (continued) 

6. Long-term obligations - The liabilities reported in the government-wide financial statements 
included general and special obligation bonds and notes, and other long-term liabilities, such as 
vacation, sick leave, litigation, long-term liabilities to other governmental entities and landfill closure 
and post closure care costs. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond issuances cost, during the 
current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources, while bond 
issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as 
expenditures in the general fund. 

7. Compensated absences - Employees accumulate vacation leave at a rate of 2.5 days per month 
up to a maximum of 60 days. Unpaid vacation time accumulated is fully vested to the employees 
from the first day of work. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide 
financial statements. 

Employees accumulate sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month up to a maximum of 90 days. 
Upon retirement, an employee receives compensation for all accumulated and unpaid sick leave at 
the current rate, if the employee has at least 10 years of service with the Municipality. All sick leave 
pay and salary related benefits are accrued when incurred in the governmental-wide financial 
statements when the employee meets such criteria. 

8. Claims and judgments - The estimated amount of the liability for claims and judgments, which is 
due on demand, such as from adjudicated or settled claims, is recorded in the general fund when 
the liability is incurred. 

9. Fund Balances - In fiscal year 2011 , the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement 
No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB No. 54), which 
enhanced the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance 
classifications that can be more consistently applied. This statement establishes fund balance 
classifications that comprise a hierarchy upon the use of the resources reported in governmental 
funds. 
Pursuant to the provisions of GASB No. 54, the accompanying GFFS report fund balance amounts 
that are considered restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned, based on the relative strength 
of the constrains that control how specific amounts can be spent, as described as follows: 
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E. Assets, liabilities and net assets (continued) 

a. Restricted - Represent resources that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by 
constitutional provisions, external resource providers {externally imposed by creditors or 
grantors), or through enabling legislation {that is, legislation that creates a new revenue source 
and restricts its use). Effectively, restrictions may be changed or lifted only with the consent of 
resource providers. 

b. Committed - Represent resources used for specific purposes, imposed by formal action of the 
Municipal's highest level of decision making authority {Municipal Legislature through resolutions 
and ordinances) and can only be changed by a similar law, ordinance or resolution, no later 
than the end of fiscal year. 

c. Unassigned - Represent the residual classification for the Municipality's general fund and 
includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other funds, the 
unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending for 
specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned. 

Negative fund balance amounts are assigned amounts reduced to the amount that will raise the 
fund balance to zero. Consequently, negative residual amounts in restricted, committed and 
assigned fund balance classifications have been reclassified to unassigned fund balances. 

The Municipality reports resources constrained to stabilization as a specified purpose {restricted or 
committed fund balance in the general fund) only if: (1) such resources meet the other criteria for 
those classifications, as described above and (2) the circumstances or conditions that signal the 
need for stabilization are identified in sufficient detail and are not expected to occur routinely. 
However, the Municipality has not entered into any stabilization-like arrangements, nor has set 
aside material financial resources for emergencies and has not established formal minimum fund 
balances amounts as of for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. 

In situations when expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in multiple 
fund balance classifications, the Municipality generally spends committed resources first, and then 
unrestricted resources. Within unrestricted resources, the Municipality generally spends committed 
resources first, followed by assigned resources, and then unassigned resources. 

10. Net Assets - Restricted net assets have been reported pursuant to the provisions of GASB 
Statement No. 46, Net Assets Restricted by Enabling Legislation (GASS No. 46). Those net assets 
consist of net resources restricted by external parties (such as debt covenants, creditors, grantors, 
contributions, laws or regulations of other governments, etc.), or net assets for which constraints are 
imposed by the constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
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E. Assets, liabilities and net assets (continued) 

Enabling legislation consists of legislation that authorizes the Municipality to assess, levy, charge or 
otherwise mandate payment of resources (from external resource providers). Enabling legislation 
establishes restrictions if it includes a legally enforceable requirement that those resources be used 
only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation. A legally enforceable enabling legislation 
restriction is one that a party external to the Municipality (such as citizens, public interest groups, or 
the judiciary) can compel the Municipality to honor. The Municipality periodically reevaluates the 
legal enforceability of an enabling legislation to determine if any of the resources raised by the 
enabling legislation are used for a purpose not specified by the enabling legislation or if the 
Municipality has other cause for consideration. 

The classification of restricted net assets identifies resources that have been received or earned by 
the Municipality with an explicit understanding between the Municipality and the resource providers 
that the resources would be used for specific purposes. Grants, contributions and donations are 
often given under those kinds of conditions. Bond indentures also often limit the use of bond 
proceeds to specific purposes. 

Internally imposed designation of resources, including earmarking, are not reported as restricted net 
assets. These designations consist of management's plans for the use of resources, which are 
subject to change at the discretion of the Municipal Legislature. 

In the government-wide statements, net assets are segregated into three categories: 

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt: Consist of capital asset balances net of 
accumulated depreciation and outstanding balances of any bonds, notes and other borrowings 
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. This 
category should not include cash that is restricted to capital assets acquisition or construction 
(unspent bond proceeds) and any unamortized debt issue costs. 

b. Restricted net assets: Represent net assets that are subject to restrictions beyond the 
Municipal's control. These include restrictions that are externally imposed (by creditors, 
grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments) or restrictions imposed by 
the law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation (including enabling legislation 
passed by the government itselD. 

c. Unrestricted net assets: Represent net assets that do not meet the definition of net assets 
invested in capital assets, net of related debt or restricted. Unrestricted assets are often 
designated to indicate that management does not consider them to be available for general 
operations. 

These types of constraints are internal and management can remove or modify them. 
Designations are not reported on the face statement of net assets. 
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E. Assets, liabilities and net assets (continued) 

11 . Accounting for Pension Costs - On July 1, 2007, the Municipality adopted the provisions of 
GASBS No. 50, Pension Disclosure, which amended GASBS No.27, Accounting for Pensions by 
State and Local Government Employers, by requiring disclosure of how the contractually required 
contribution rate is determined by governments participating in multi-employer cost-sharing pension 
plans. 

The Municipality accounts for pension costs from the standpoint of a participant in a multi-employer 
cost-sharing plan. Accordingly, pension costs recognized in the accompanying basic financial 
statements are equal to the statutorily required contributions, with a liability recorded for any unpaid 
required contributions. 

For the purpose of applying the requirements of GASBS No. 27, the state government of the 
Government of Puerto Rico is considered to be the sponsor of the Employees' Retirement System 
of the Government of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities (ERS) and System 2000, a multi­
employer cost-sharing define benefit pension plan and a hybrid defined contribution plan, 
respectively, in which the employees of the Municipality participate. The Municipality is considered a 
participant, and not a sponsor, of these retirement systems since the majority of the participants in 
the aforementioned pension trust funds are employees of the Government of Puerto Rico and the 
basic financial statements of such retirement systems are part of the financial reporting entity of the 
Government of Puerto Rico. 

12. lnterfund and intra-entity transactions - The Municipality has the following types of transactions 
among funds: 

d. Operating Transfers - Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred as 
"Operating transfer-in" by the recipient fund and as "Operating transfers-out" by the disbursing 
fund. 

e. Intra-Entity Transactions - Transfers between the funds of the primary government are 
reported as interfund transfers with receivables and payables presented as amounts due to 
and due from other funds. 

13. Risk financing - The Municipality carries commercial insurance to cover casualty, theft, tort claims 
and other losses. Insurance policies are negotiated by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department and 
costs are allocated among all the Municipalities of Puerto Rico. Cost of insurance allocated to the 
Municipality and deducted from the gross property tax collections by the CRIM for the year ended 
June 30, 2012 to $392,432. The current insurance policies have not been cancelled or terminated. 

The Municipality carries insurance coverage for death and bodily injuries caused by the automobile 
accidents. 
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

E. Assets, liabilities and net assets (continued) 

The insurance is obtained through the Automobile Accidents Compensation Administration (AACA), 
a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. This insurance is compulsory for all 
licensed vehicles used on public roads and highways in Puerto Rico. The annual premium is $35 
per licensed motor vehicle, which is paid directly to AACA. 

The Municipality obtains workers' compensation insurance through the State Insurance Fund 
Corporation (SIFC), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. This insurance covers 
workers against injuries, disability or death because of work or employment-related accidents, or 
because of illness suffered as a consequence of their employment. Cost of insurance allocated to 
the Municipality and deducted from the gross property tax collections by the Municipal Revenue 
Collection Center (CRIM) for the year ended June 30, 2012 amounted to $383,240. 

The Municipality obtains unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability, and drivers' 
insurance coverage for its employees through various insurance programs administered by the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico's Department of Labor and Human Resources (DOL). These 
insurance programs cover workers against unemployment and provide supplementary insurance 
coverage for temporary disability, or death because work or employment-related accidents or non­
occupational disability and drivers' insurance premiums are paid directly to DOL on a cost 
reimbursement basis. 

Under Act No. 63 of June 21 , 2010, the Legislative Assembly of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, 
authorized the municipalities to procure and manage at their own discretion all insurance policies, 
including those related to health plans been provided to the municipal employees. The Municipality 
also obtains medical insurance coverage from one health insurance company for its employees. 
Different health coverage and premium options are negotiated each year by the Municipality. 
Premiums are paid on a monthly basis directly to the insurance company. 

14. Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with USGAAP requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual 
amounts could differ from those estimates. 

36 



-

-

-

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

The Municipality maintains its deposits in various commercial banks located in Puerto Rico and 
Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GOB). Proceeds from bonds and funds related to certain 
grant awards are required by law to be held with GOB. 

The Municipality adopted the provisions of GASS Statement No. 40 (GASS No. 40), Deposit and 
Investment Risk Disclosure, an Amendment to GASB Statement No. 3. This statement requires that state 
and local governments disclose essential risk information about deposits and investments. The disclosure 
requirements cover four main areas: (1) credit risk, (2) interest rate risk, (3) custodial credit risk, (4) foreign 
exchange exposure. 

Credit risk - This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. In compliance with the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, the Municipality has 
adopted, as it's custodial and credit risk policy, the Statement of Investment Guidelines for the Government 
of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Accordingly the Municipality invests only in obligations of the 
Commonwealth, obligations of the United States of America, certificates of deposits, commercial paper, 
bankers' acceptances, or in pools of obligations of the municipalities of Puerto Rico, which are managed by 
GOB. According to the aforementioned investment guidelines, the Municipality does not invest in 
marketable securities or any types of investments for which credit risk exposure may be significant. 
Therefore, the Municipality's management has concluded that the risk related to any possible loss related to 
defaults by commercial banks on the Municipality's deposits is considered low at June 30, 2012. 

Interest rate risk - This is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adversely affect 
the fair value of an investment. The Municipality manages its exposure to declines in fair values by: (1) not 
including debt investments in its investment portfolio at June 30, 2012, (2) limiting the weighted average 
maturity of its investments to three months or less, and (3) keeping most of its bank deposits in interests 
bearing accounts generating interests at prevailing market rates. At June 30, 2012, the Municipality's 
investments in certificates of deposits are recorded at cost, which approximates their fair value. Therefore, 
the Municipality's management has concluded that at June 30, 2012, the interest rate risk associated with 
the Municipality's cash and cash equivalents is considered low. 

Custodial credit risk - In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
Municipality's deposits may not be recovered. Pursuant to the Statement of Investment Guidelines for the 
Government of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico the balances deposited in commercial banks by the 
Municipality are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) generally up to a maximum of 
$250,000 per depositor. In addition, public funds deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are fully 
securities pledged as collateral are held, in the Municipality's name, by the agents of the Commonwealth's 
Secretary of Treasury. Deposits with GOB are uninsured and uncollateralized. 

However, no losses related to defaults by GOB on deposit transactions have been incurred by the 
Municipality through June 30, 2012. Therefore, the Municipality's management has concluded that at June 
30, 2012, the custodial credit risk associated with the Municipality's cash and cash equivalents is 
considered low. 
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Foreign exchange risk - The risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the value of an 
investment or a deposit. According to the aforementioned investment guidelines, the Municipality is 
prevented from investing in foreign securities or any other types of investments in which foreign exchange 
risk exposure may be significant. Accordingly, management has concluded that the foreign exchange risk 
related to the Municipality's deposits is considered low at June 30, 2012. Under Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico statutes public funds deposited in commercial banks must be fully collateralized for the amount 
deposited in excess of federal depository insurance. All securities pledged as collateral are held by the 
Secretary of the Treasury of Puerto Rico. In addition, the Municipality maintains deposits with the 
Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GOB). 

Deposits - The Municipality's bank balances in commercial banks of $5,902,987 in the general fund, 
$3,095,924 in the special revenue fund (02), $2,734, 160 in the capital projects funds -state and federal 
grants and $260,762 in the others governmental funds were fully collateralized at June 30, 2012. 

The deposits at GOB of $2,518,938 in the special revenue fund (02), $6,034,036 in the debt service fund 
that is restricted and $1 ,314,319 in the capital projects fund - state and federal grants are unsecured and 
uncollateralized, as no collateral is required to be carried by governmental banks. 

3. RECEIVABLES 

A. Municipal license Tax - The Municipality imposes a municipal license tax on all businesses that 
operate within the Municipality, which are not totally or partially exempt from the tax pursuant to the 
Industrial Incentives Acts of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. This is a self-assessed tax based on 
the business volume in gross sales as shown in the tax return that is due on April 15 of each year. 
Entities with sales volume of $1,000,000 or more must include audited financial statements together 
with the tax return. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the tax rates were as follows: 

1. Financial business- 1.50% of gross revenues 
2. Other organizations- 0.50% of gross revenues 

This tax is due in two equal installments on July 1 and January 1 of each fiscal year. A discount of 5% is 
allowed when full payment is made on or before April 15. 

Municipal license tax receivable of $9,824 represents filed municipal license tax returns that were 
uncollected as of June 30, 2012, net of allowance for uncollectible accounts. Municipal license taxes 
collected prior to June 30 but pertaining to the next fiscal year is recorded as deferred revenues. 

B. In the general fund represents interest investment and municipal license taxes not yet received. 
Following is detail of the others receivables: 

Description 

Interest Investment 
Ambulances services 

Total 

Amount 

$ 19,876 
10.066 

s 29.942 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

3. RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 

C. Federal grants receivables in the capital projects funds and other governmental funds represent mainly 
expenditures incurred not yet reimbursed by the Federal Government. Following is a detail of the 
federal grant receivables: 

Program Description 

Community Development Block Grants- Entitlement 
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 

Total 

4. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

Amount 

$ 318,087 
2 547 

s 320,634 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may result in 
amounts owed between funds. Those related to goods and services type transactions are classified as "due 
to and from other funds" (Le,, current portion of interfund loans). 

lnterfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2012 are summarized as follows: 

a. Due from/to other fund: 

Fund 

General Fund (01) 
Special Revenue Fund (02) 
Capital Projects Funds (20 & 21) 
Other Governmental Fund 

Total 

b. Transfer in/out to other fund 

Receivable Fund 

$ 482,234 
145,282 
161,283 

$ 788,799 

Following is a summary of interfund transfers for the year: 

Transfer out 

General Fund-(01) 

General Fund-(01) 

Transfer in 

Debt Service Fund (10) 

Capital Projects Fund (20 & 
21 ) State & Federal Grants 

Total Governmental Fund Financial Statements 

Transfers- Government-Wide Statement of Activities 

Transfer to 
Business-type Activities 

Total Government-Wide Financial Statements 

Purpose 
Transfers funds to cover debt service 
payments 

Transfers funds to cover capital projects 
payments 

Transfer from 
Governmental Activities 

Pavable Fund 

$ 21,573 
339,476 
206,491 
221 ,259 

$ 788.799 

Amount 
$ 488,404 

7 500 

$ 495.904 

Amount 
s 665.996 

$ 665.996 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

5. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets; those with an estimated useful live of one year or more from the time of acquisition by the 
Municipality and a cost of $25 or more, are primarily funded through the issuance of long-term bonds and 
loans. A summary of capital assets and changes occurring in 2012, including those changes pursuant to 
the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, follows. Land and construction in progress are not subject 
to depreciation: 

- Balance Retirements/ Balance 
Governmental Activities: Jul~ 1, 2011 Additions Reclassifications June 30, 2012 

Capital asset, not being depreciated: 

Construction in progress $ 342,800 $ 120,596 $ (463,396) $ 
Land 23,490,745 852,354 24,343,099 

Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 23,833,545 972,950 (463,396) 24,343,099 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings and building improvements 33,790,685 500,894 34,291,579 
Infrastructure and Infrastructure 
improvements 29,065,793 3,462,088 410,052 32,937,933 
Equipments 4,092,719 105,110 (128,416) 4,069,413 
Furnishing 1,284,764 2,202 (6,775) 1,280,191 
Computers 638,548 11,724 (2,074) 648,198 
Works of art 6,787 6,787 
Vehicles 6,304,638 232,089 6,536,727 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 75, 183,934 4,314, 107 272,787 79,770,828 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings and building improvements (8,340,208) (849,620) (9, 189,828) 
Infrastructure and Infrastructure 
improvements ( 11, 038, 702) (792, 156) (12,834) ( 11,843,692) 
Equipments (3,459,079) (313,964) 122,629 (3,650,414) 
Furnishing (1,030,306) (1 38,877) 8,985 (1, 160, 198) 
Computers (581,812) (31 ,517) 2,954 (610,375) 
Works of art (3,121) (661) (3,782) 
Vehicles (5, 720,218) (245,077) (5,965,295) 

Total accumulated depreciation (30, 173,446) (2,371,872) 121,734 (32,423,584) 

Total capital assets being 45,010,488 1,942,235 394,521 47,347,244 
depreciated, net 

Governmental activities capital - assets, net $ 68,844.033 $ 2,915,185 $ (68.875) $ 71.690,343 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

5. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Municipality as follows: 

Governmental activities: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Health and welfare 
Culture and recreation 
Community development 

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities 

Balance 
Business - type activities July 1, 2011 

Capital asset, not being depreciated: 

Land i 600,000 

Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 600,000 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Building 6,576,754 
Machinery and equipment 171.425 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 6,748,179 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Building (876,901) 
Machinery and equipment (71,941) 

Total accumulated depreciation (948,842} 

Total capital assets being depreciated, 
net 5,799,337 

Business ·type Activities capital 
assets, net $ 6,399,337 

Retirements/ 
Additions Adjustments 

i i 

(164,419) 
(34,480) 

(198,899} 

(198,899} 

$ (198,899) $ 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Municipality as follows: 

Business -type Activities 

Community development 

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities 

$ 748,811 
186,963 
932,542 
79,735 

214,329 
209.492 

$ 2.371.872 

Balance 
June 30, 2012 

$ 600,000 

600,000 

6,576,754 
171,425 

6,748,179 

(1 ,041,320) 
(106.421) 

(1, 147,741} 

5,600.438 

$ 6.200.438 

~ 198,899 

s 1~8 899 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

6. PROPERTY TAXES 

The personal property tax is self assessed by the taxpayer on a return which is to be filed by May 15 of 
each year with the Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM), a governmental entity created by the 
government of Puerto Rico as part of the Municipal Governmental Autonomous Law of August 1991. Real 
property tax is assessed by the CRIM on each piece of real estate and on each building. 

The assessment is made as of January 1 of each year and is based on current values for personal property 
and on estimated values as of 1957 for real property tax. The tax on personal property must be paid in full 
together with the return by May 15. The tax on real property may be paid in two installments by July 1 and 
January 1. The CRIM is responsible for the billing and collections of real and personal property taxes on 
behalf of all the municipalities of Puerto Rico. Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the CRIM informs 
the Municipality of the estimated amount of property tax expected to be collect for the ensuing fiscal year. 
Throughout the year, the CRIM advances funds to the Municipality based on the initial estimated 
collections, as modified by the quarterly revisions of estimates required law. The CRIM is required by law 
to prepare a liquidation statement on a fiscal year basis, whereby a comparison is made between the 
amounts advanced to the Municipality and amounts actually collected from taxpayers. This preliminary 
liquidation has to be completed on a preliminary basis not later than three months after fiscal year-end, and 
a final liquidation made not later than six months after year-end, subject to the verification by its 
Independent Auditors. If the CRIM remits to the Municipality property tax advances, which are less than the 
tax actually collected, a receivable from the CRIM is recorded at June 30. However, if advances exceed the 
amount actually collected by the CRIM, a payable to the CRIM is recorded at June 30. The CRIM issued 
the final liquidation for fiscal year 2011-2012 noting that the collections exceeded advances by $461 ,301. In 
the governmental funds the entire receivable has been offset by deferred revenue since the excess was not 
available to pay liabilities of the current period. In the government-wide financial statements, the entire 
receivable is recognized as revenue. 

On January 26, 2000, Public Law No. 42 was enacted, which authorized the CRIM to obtain a loan up to 
$200,000,000, and for a term not to exceeding 10 years, to allow for the financing of the debt that the 
Municipalities of Puerto Rico have with the CRIM arising from final settlements of property tax advances 
versus actual collections through fiscal year ended June 30, 2000. 

The amounts that the Municipalities will collect from additional property taxes resulting from increases in 
the subsidy from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico to the Municipalities are assigned through this law to 
repay such loan. The increase in this subsidy was the result of the Public Law No. 238, enacted on August 
15, 1999. On October 11, 2001, Public Law No. 146 was enacted to amend Public Law No. 42, to extend 
the loan amortization period up to 30 years. Also, on October 11 , 2002, Public Law No. 172 was enacted, 
to provide as an option for the Municipalities to include the debt that the Municipalities of Puerto Rico have 
with the CRIM arising from final settlements of property tax advances versus actual collections for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2001 with the loan authorized through Public Law No. 42 enacted on January 26, 
2000. 
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

6. PROPERTY TAXES (CONTINUED) 

On June 26 1997, Public Law No. 21 was enacted, which authorizing the CRIM, among other things, to sell 
the property tax receivables related to taxpayers who owed property taxes from 197 4 to 1996. Such 
property tax receivables were purchased by the Public Financing Corporation, a subsidiary of the 
Government Development Bank of Puerto Rico (GOB) using the proceeds of a bond issuance executed for 
such purposes. Said Law imposed the CRIM the obligation to replace uncollectible property tax 
receivables with any valid property tax receivable o equivalent in money. Subsequent to the approval of 
the Law and to the sale transaction, it was detected that a substantial percentage of the receivables sold 
were uncollectible. In order to protect the economic damage to the financial structure of municipalities 
caused by the substitution of uncollectible tax receivables with sound collectible receivables, on October 
11, 2001, Public Law No. 146 was approved and enacted. Through this Law, the CRIM was authorized to 
obtain a loan from any qualified financial institution and pay in advance the outstanding balance of the 
bonds issued and any related cost incurred for the purchase by the Public Financing Corporation (a GOB 
subsidiary) of the tax receivables. 

Residential real property occupied by tts owner is exempt by law from the payment of property taxes on the 
first $15,000 of the assessed value. For such exempted amounts, the Puerto Rico Treasury Department 
assumes payment of the basic tax to the Municipalities, except for property assessed at less than $3,500 
for which no payment is made. As part of the Municipal Autonomous Law of 1991, the exempt amount to 
be paid by the Puerto Rico Treasury department to the Municipalities was frozen as of January 1, 1992. In 
addition, the law grants a tax exemption from the payment of personal property taxes of up to $50,000 of 
the assessed value to retailers having annual net sales of less than $150,000. 

The annual tax rate is 8.58% for real property and 6.58% for personal property of which 1.03% of both tax 
rates are for the redemption of public debt issued by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The remaining 
percentage is distributed as follows: (a) 5.8% and 3.8%, respectively, represents the Municipality's basic 
property tax rate which is appropriated for basics and accounted for in the general fund. A portion of such 
amount is deposited in an equalization fund together with a percentage of the net revenues of the Puerto 
Rico electronic lottery and a subsidy from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. From such fund, a 
distribution is made to all municipalities; (b) 1.75% represents the ad valorem tax restricted for debt service 
and accounted for in the debt service fund. The Commonwealth also contributes an annual tax rate of 0.2% 
of the property tax collected and such amount is accounted for similar to item (a) above. 

7. MUNICIPAL SALES AND USE TAX 

On July 29, 2007, an amendment to Act No. 117 of July 4, 2006, known as the "Tax Fairness Act of 2006", 
was enacted with the purpose of establishing a mandatory sales and use tax of 1.5% at the Municipal 
Level. The Municipalities of Puerto Rico are responsible to collect 1 % of the corresponding tax with the 
same exemptions and limitations that the portion collected by the Treasury Department. The Act provides 
an optional surtax on the un-process food. This surtax must be approved by the Municipal Legislature. The 
Treasury Department is responsible to create, the Municipal Development Fund (.2%), the Municipal 
Redemption Fund (.2%) and the Municipal Improvements Fund (.1%) with the remaining 0.5%. The 
Municipality collected $ 1,719,048 during the year ended June 30, 2012. 
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8. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2012 are summarized as follows: 

Special Revenue Capital Projects 
Fund (02)- Debt Service Fund (20&21) - Other 

General State & local Fund - State & Governmental 
Description Fund-{01) Grants (10&11) local Grants Fund 

Accounts payable $ 477,864 $ 688,798 s s 93,713 s 796 

Acaued liabilities 153 090 113413 

Total $ 630 95~ s 688 Z98 s s 93 Zl3 $ 114 209 

9. DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENT AL ENTITIES 

The amounts due to other governmental entities in the general fund include the following: 

Govemmental Entity 

Government of Puerto Rico Employee Association (AEGPR) 
Retirement System Administration 
Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority 
Department of Labor-Unemployment Program 
Others 

Total 

10. DEFERRED REVENUES 

s 

s 

Total 

1,261, 171 

266,5Q3 

l52Z6H 

Amount 

s 41,025 
234,430 
28,593 
4,099 

11 589 

$ 319 736 

A. Municipal License Tax- The deferred revenues of $6,506, 115 in the general fund relates to municipal 
license tax collected in fiscal year 2011-12 that will be earned in fiscal year 2012-13. 

B. Federal Grants- The deferred revenues presented in other governmental funds represents the portion 
of federal grants received for which qualifying expenditures have not been incurred. Deferred revenues 
from the federal government are as follows: 

Program Description 

Child Care and Development Block Grants 

Total 

$ 21 ,956 

$ 21.956 
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10. DEFERRED REVENUES (CONTINUED) 

C. Others- The deferred revenues presented in the special revenue funds and other governmental funds 
represent the portion of federal grants received for which qualifying expenditures have not been 
incurred. Deferred revenues from the federal government are as follows: 

Program Description 

Public assistance 
Others 

Total 

11. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2012, was as follows: 

Beginning Borrowings Payments or 
Descri~tion Balance or Additions Deductions 

Bonds Payable $ 23,295,000 $ $ (1 ,030,000) 
Notes Payable 11,150,000 2,015,000 (646,000) 
LIMS Repayment Plan 50,580 (50,580) 
Property Taxes Debt 29,178 19,458 (29,178) 
Compensated Absences 3,450,350 429,861 (452,824) 
Landfill Obligation 671,000 (47,000} 

Total S381646, 1 Q8 S2,464,319 S"1255,58~) 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 22,265,000 
12,519,000 

19,458 
3,427,387 

624,000 

~~S,854.~~5 

$ 25,999 
6 481 

$ 32 480 

Due Within 
One Year 

$1 ,115,000 
1,026,000 

19,458 
570,000 
47 000 

~2.777,4~8 

1. Legal Debt Margin - The Municipality is subject to a legal debt margin requirement, which is equal to 
10% of the total assessment of property located within the Municipality plus balance of the ad valorem 
taxes in the debt service fund, for bonds payable to be repaid with the proceeds of property taxes 
restricted for debt service. In addition, before any new bonds are issued, the revenues of the debt 
service fund should be sufficient to cover the projected debt service requirement. Long-term debt, 
except for the bonds payable, is paid with unrestricted funds. 

2. Bonds Payable - The Municipality issues general and special obligation bonds to provide funds for the 
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. Bonds payable outstanding at June 30, 2012 are 
as follows: 
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11 . LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

Description 

1996 General obligation bond for the acquisition of real estate with an original amount of $605,000 due 
in annual installments of $25,000 to $50,000, through July 1, 2021 , with interest of 4.86% to 6.75% 

1999 General obligation bond for the acquisition of real estate with an original amount of $260,000 due 
in annual installments of $5,000 to $25,000 through July 1, 2024, with interest of 2.70% to 7.81 % 

1999 General obligation bond for blue prints drawings, permits. structure demolition and debris 
disposition with an original amount of $710,000 due in installments of $20,000 to $60,000 through July 
1, 2024, with interest ranging from 2.8% to 7.8% 

2000 General obligation bond for the construction of capital assets with an original amount of 
$6,440,000 due in installments of $175,000 to $560,000 through July 1, 2025, with interest ranging 
from 2.70% to 7.80% 

2002 Special obligation bond for asphalt municipal streets, roads and to finance operational loan with 
an original amount of $1 ,335,000 due in installments of $65,000 to $120,000 through July 1, 2026, with 
interest ranging from 5.0% to 6.5% 

2002 Special obligation bond for the acquisition of real estate with an original amount of $580,000 due 
in installments of $20,000 to $45,000 through July 1, 2026. with interest ranging from 5.0% to 6.5% 

2004 Special obligation bond for asphalt municipal streets and roads with an original amount of 
$905,000 due in installments of $95,000 to $115,000 through July 1, 2014, with interest ranging from 
5.0% to 12.0% 

2004 Special obligation bond for the construction of a capital assets with an original amount of 
$4,020,000 due in installments of $115,000 to $280,000 through July 1, 2029, with interest ranging 
from 5.0% to 12.0% 

2005 General obligation bond for the construction of capital assets with an original amount of 
$435,000 due in installments of $10,000 to $30,000 through July 1, 2029, with interest ranging from 
4.37% to 5.00% 

2005 General obligation bond for asphalt municipal streets, roads and for construction of capital assets 
with an original amount of $730,000 due in installments of $35,000 to $75,000 through July 1, 2014, 
with interest ranging from 4.23% to 4.80% 

2006 General obligation bond for the construction of capital assets with an original amount of 
$5,050,000 due in annual installments of $100,000 to $410,000, through July 1, 2031 , with interest of 
6.62% to 7.25% 

Balance at 
June 30, 2012 

$ 380,000 

195,000 

525,000 

4,970,000 

855,000 

445,000 

225,000 

3,285,000 

365,000 

540,000 

4,590,000 
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11. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

Description 

2008 General obligation bond for the construction of capital assets with an original amount of 
$1,580,000 due in annual installments of $130,000 to 5215,000 through July 1. 2017, with interest of 
7.50% 

2010 General obligation bond to compensate budgetary obligations with an original amount of 
$1,980,000 due in installments of $25,000 to $165,000, through July 1, 2024, with interest ranging 
from 5.0% to 7.5% 

2011 General obligation bond for infrastructure construction and improvements with an original amount 
of $2,015,000 due in installments of $140,000 to $275,000 through July 1, 2020, with interest ranging 
from 6.00% to 7.50% 

2011 Special obligation bond for operational expenses with an original amount of $1 ,020,000 due in 
installments of $10,000 to $85,000 through July 1, 2035, with interest ranging from 6.00% to 7.50% 

Total 

Balance at 
June 30, 2012 

$ 1,080,000 

1,925,000 

1,875,000 

1.010.000 

$ 22,265,000 

These bonds are payable from the special ad valorem property tax of 1. 75% which is restricted for debt 
service and retained by the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico for such purposes. The series 
2011 of $1 ,020,000, is payable with the revenues generated from the collection of the .2% of the municipal 
sales and use tax imposed by the Municipality and collected by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds payable are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30, Princieal Interest 

2013 $ 1,115,000 s 1,032,279 
2014 1, 180,000 1,285,926 
2015 1,150,000 1,214,797 
2016 1,230,000 1,141,088 
2017 1,315,000 1,061 ,851 
2018-2022 6,695,000 4,051,398 
2023-2027 5,525,000 2,190,776 
2028-2032 3,280,000 825,901 
2033-2036 775,000 102,187 

Total $ 22,265,000 $ 12,906,203 
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11. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

3. Notes Payable- The proceeds of the issuance of notes payable were used principally to pay debt 
incurred in prior years and to cover the expenditures of a special event. The notes are payable as 
follows: 

Maturity Original Range of Balance at 
T~~ of notes Date Amount Interest rates June 30, 2012 

2006 General obligations notes 7-1-13 545,000 6.62% to 7.25% $ 185,000 
2004-A Series- Section 108 Loan 8-1-22 5,100,000 Variable 4,075,000 
2006-A Series- Section 108 Loan 8-1-24 1,895,000 Variable 1,574,000 
2007 General obligations notes 7-1-14 270,000 6.48% to 7.50% 130,000 
2007 General obligations notes 7-1-14 445,000 6.48% to 7.50% 225,000 
2008 Special obligations notes 7-1-32 3,170,000 7.50% 3,010,000 
2010 General obligations notes 7-1-32 390,000 6.00% to 7.50% 300,000 
2011 Special obligations notes 7-1-32 1,005,000 7.50% 1,005,000 
2012 General obligations notes 7-1-19 1,010,000 6.00% to 7.50% 1,010,000 
2012 General obligations notes 7-1-18 1,005,000 6.00% to 7.50% 1,005,000 

Total notes payable $ 12,519,000 

These notes are payable from special ad valorem property tax of 1. 75% and the Municipal sales and 
use tax of (.030%) which are restricted for debt service and retained by the Government Development 
Bank for Puerto Rico for such purposes. The Section 108 is payable from Special Revenue Fund -
Federal Grant funds. The Series 2008 amounting $3, 170,000, is payable with the revenues generated 
from the collection of the .2% of the municipal sales and use tax imposed by the Municipality and 
collected by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes payable are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30, Princi~al Interest 

2013 $ 1,026,000 $ 583,775 
2014 1,111,000 722,119 
2015 1,076,000 650,089 
2016 1,016,000 581 ,509 
2017 1,091 ,000 512,413 
2018-2022 4,280,000 1,614,075 
2023-2027 1,569,000 700,441 
2028-2032 1,080,000 315,750 
2033-2037 270,000 10,125 

Total $ 12,519,000 s 5,690,296 

4. LIMS Repayment Plan- During the fiscal year 2000-2001 , the Municipality authorized the CRIM to 
retain the corresponding portion for the financing project of Land Information Management System­
LIMS, contracted by the CRIM. A total of $776,667 is to be retained in ten years period at an 
interest rate of 5.95% until November 28, 2011. At June 30, 2012, the outstanding balance was 
paid entirely. 

48 



-

-

COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

11 . LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

5. Property Taxes Debts- These amounts represents the balance owed to the Treasury Department 
and to the Municipal Revenue Collection Center ("CRIM") at June 30, 2012. The CRIM issued a 
settlement noting that the advances exceeded collections by $19,458. In the government-wide 
financial statements, the entire amount has been recognized as long term debt 

6. Compensated Absences- The government-wide statement of net assets includes approximately 
$2, 159,000 of accrued sick leave benefits, and approximately $1 ,269,000 of accrued vacation 
benefits, representing the Municipality's commitment to fund such costs from future operations. 

7. Landfill Obligation- State and federal laws and regulations require the Municipality to place a final 
cover on its landfill site since 1994, when it stopped accepting waste, and perform certain 
maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for 30 years after closure. In accordance with 
Statement No. 18 of the GASS, "Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Post­
closure Care Costs", the Municipality has performed a study of the activities that need to be 
implemented at the Municipality's landfill to comply with applicable state and federal regulations. 
Based on this study, the Municipality has recognized $624,000 as the Municipality's estimated 
current cost for landfill post-closure costs as of June 30, 2012. The annual estimate of post closure 
costs has been assessed approximately to be $47,000 for a period of approximately 18 years. 
Actual costs may be different due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in laws and 
regulations. The balance of post-closure costs is reported in the government-wide statement of net 
assets. 

12. PENSION PLAN 

The Employee's Retirement System of the Commonwealth and its Instrumentalities (the Retirement 
System) is a cost-sharing multiple defined benefit pension plan sponsored by, and reported as a 
component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. All regular employees of the Municipality under 55 
years of age at the date of employment become members of the Retirement System as a condition to their 
employment. 

The Retirement System provides retirement, death and disability benefits pursuant to legislation enacted 
by the Commonwealth's legislature. Disability retirement benefits are available to members for 
occupational and non-occupational disabilities. Retirement benefits depend upon age at retirement and 
the number of years of creditable service. Benefits vest after ten years of plan participation. 

Members who have attained 55 years of age and have completed at least 25 years of creditable service or 
members who have attained 58 years of age and have completed ten years of creditable service are 
entitled to an annual benefit payable monthly for life. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

12. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

The amount of the annuity shall be one and one-half percent of the average compensation, as defined, 
multiplied by the number of years of creditable service up to twenty years, plus two percent of the average 
compensation, as defined, multiplied by the number of years of creditable service in excess of 20 years. 
In no case will the annuity be less than $200 per month. 

Participants who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to receive the Merit 
Annuity. Participants who have not attained 55 years of age will receive 65 percent of the average 
compensation, as defined; otherwise they will receive 75 percent of the average compensation, as 
defined. No benefits are payable if the participant receives a refund of his/her accumulated contributions. 
Disability retirement benefits are available to members for occupational disability up to a maximum benefit 
of 50% of the average salary, as defined. However, for non-occupational disability, a member must have 
at least 10 years of creditable services. 

Commonwealth legislation requires employees to contribute 5.775% for the first $550 of their monthly 
gross salary and 8.275% for the excess over $ 550 of monthly gross salary. The Municipality is required 
by the same statute to contribute 9.275% of the participant's gross salary. 

On September 24, 1999, an amendment to Act. No. 447 of May 15, 1951, which created the Retirement 
System, was enacted with the purpose of establishing a new pension program (System 2000). 
Employee's participation in the current system as of December 31 , 1999, may elect to stay in the defined 
benefit plan or transfer to the new program. Persons joining the Municipality on or after January 1, 2000, 
will only be allowed to become members of System 2000. System 2000 will reduce the retirement age 
from 65 years to 60 for those employees who joined the current plan on or after April 1, 1990. 

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance plan. Under this new 
plan, there will be a pool of pension assets, which will be invested by ERS together with those of the 
current defined benefit plan. The Commonwealth of Puerto Rico will not guarantee benefits at retirement 
age. The annuity will be based on a formula which assumes that each year the employee's contribution 
(with a minimum of 8.275% to the employee's salary up to a maximum of 10%) will be invested in an 
account which will either: (1) earn a fixed rate based on the two-year Constant Maturity Treasury Note or, 
(2) earn a rate equal to 75% of the return of the ERS's investment portfolio (net of management fees), or 
(3) earn a combination of both alternatives. Participants will receive periodic account statements similar to 
those of defined contribution plans showing their accrued balances. Disability pensions will not be granted 
under System 2000. The employer's contribution (9.275% of the employee's salary) will be used to fund 
the current plan. 
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

12. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

If at the time of retirement accumulated benefits amount to $10,000 or less may elect to receive a lump 
sum distribution up to the accumulated benefits. Under the new program the retirement age is reduced 
from 65 to 60 for those employees who joined the current plan on or after April 1, 1990. 

Funding Policy 

The authority under which the funding policy and the obligations to contribute to the ERS and System 
2000 by the plans' members, employers and other contributing entities (state and municipal contributions), 
are established or may be amended by law. 

Contribution requirements are established by law and are as follows: 

Municipality 
Employees: 

Hired on or before March 31 , 1990 

Hired on or before April 1, 1990 

Annual Contribution 

9.275% of gross salary 

5. 775% of gross salary up to $6,600 
8.275% of gross salary over $6,600 
8.275% of gross salary 

The Municipality contributions during those years are recognized as total pension expenditures/expenses in 
the category of administration as follows: 

Fiscal year 

2012 

2011 

2010 

LawNo.447 

$ 375,179 

$ 396,787 

$ 416,677 

System 2000 

$ 298,287 

$ 312,618 

$ 308,328 

These amounts represented the 100% of the required contribution for the corresponding year. Additionally, 
changes made in the types and amounts of benefits offered by special laws and cost of living adjustments, 
led to a one-time recommended contribution to fund the retroactive adjustment related to the changes. 

Additional information on the Retirement System is provided in its financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2012, a copy of which can be obtained from the Retirement System, Minillas Station, PO Box 
42004, San Juan, PR 00940. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

As of June 30 2012, fund balance is comprised of the following: 

Capital Projects 
Special Revenue Fund· (20 & 21) 

General Fund·(02) State & Debt Service Fund State & Federal 
Fund Balance {Deficit! Fund:!01l Federal Grants -!10& 111 Grants 

Restricted for: 
General Government $ . $ 350,568 $ $ 50,008 
Public WOii<. 161,672 3.737,292 
Health and Welfare 619,491 1,991 
Culture and Recreation 75,963 77,074 
Economic Development 2, 115,503 3,150 
Community Development 1,311,079 66,309 
Debi Service 6,034,036 

Committed: 
General Government 15,561 
Public Safety 495 
Community Developmenl 55,539 

Unassigned (1.053,391) 

Total Fund Balance $ (l 053 39ll $ 4 705 871 $ 6 03A 0.3fi $ 3 935 824 

( 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds Total 

$ $ 400,576 
3,898,964 

187,911 809,393 
153,037 

2,118,653 
3,314 1,380,702 

6,034,036 

15,561 
495 

55,539 

{1.053.391) 

s l9l 225 Ul.813.5.65 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

14. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Property Division of the Municipality is responsible of assuring that the Municipality's property is properly 
insured. Annually, the Property Division compiles the information of all property owned and its respective 
market value. After evaluating this information, the Property Division submits the data regarding the 
Municipality's properties to the Area of Public Insurance at the Department of the Treasury of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico who is responsible for purchasing all property and casualty insurance policies of 
all municipalities. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

A. Federal grants: 

The Municipality participates in a number of Federal Financial Assistance Programs. Although the 
Municipality's grant programs have been audited in accordance with the provisions of the Single Audrt 
Act of 1996, through June 30, 2012, these programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits 
by the granting agencies and the resolution of previously identified questioned costs. The amount, if 
any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grating agencies cannot be determined at this 
time, although the Municipality expects such amounts, if any, not to be material. 

B. Claims and lawsuits: 

The Municipality is a defendant in several legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of the 
Municipality's activities. Certain of these claims are covered by insurance. The administration believes 
that the ultimate liability, if any, would not be significant. As a result, the accompanying financial 
statements do not include adjustments, if any, that could result from the resolution of these legal 
proceedings. 

C. Other Commitments: 

At June 30, 2012, the general fund has commitments of approximately $70,986 for executor, purchase 
orders or contracts that will be honored during the subsequent year. 

16. FUTURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

The GASS has issued the following statements that have effective dates after June 30, 2012: 

a. GASB Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements 
(GASB 60). The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues 
related to service concession arrangements (SCAs), which are a type of public-private or public-public 
partnership. This Statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011 . 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

16. FUTURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

b. GASS Statement No. 61 , The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus - an amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 14 and No. 34 (GASB No. 61). The objective of this Statement is to improve financial 
reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity. The requirements of Statement No. 14, The 
Financial Reporting Entity, and the related financial reporting requirement of Statement No. 34, Basic 
Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local 
Governments, were amended to better meet user need and to address reporting entity issues that have 
arisen since the issuance of those Statements. This Statement is Effective for periods beginning after 
June 15, 2012. 

c. GASS Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in 
Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and A/CPA pronouncements. The objective of this Statement is to 
incorporate into the GASB's authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance 
that is included in the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, which does 
not conflict with or contradict GASS pronouncements; 1) Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASS) 
Statements and interpretations, 2)Accounting Principles Boards Opinions, 3) Accounting Research 
Bulletins of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants'(AICPA) Committee on Accounting 
Procedures. This Statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. 

d. GASS Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Net Position. The objective of this Statement is to provide financial reporting guidance 
for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Concepts Statement No. 4, 
Elements of Financial Statements, introduced and defined elements as a consumption of net assets by 
the government that is applicable to a future reporting period, and an acquisition of net assets by the 
government that is applicable to a future reporting period, respectively. The provisions of this 
Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Earlier 
application is encouraged. 

e. GASS Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. The objective of this 
Statement is to establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred 
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as 
assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items 
that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. This Statement also provides other financial 
reporting guidance related to impact of the financial statement elements deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources, such as changes in the determinations of the major fund calculations 
and limiting the use of the term deferred in financial statement presentations. The provisions of this 
Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012. Earlier 
application is encouraged. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

16. FUTURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

f. GASS Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections - 2012 - an amendment of GASS Statements No. 10 
and No. 62. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for a 
governmental financial reporting entity by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance 
of two pronouncements, Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre­
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The provisions of this Statement are effective 
for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012. Earlier application is 
encouraged. 

Post fiscal year 2012-2013 

a. GASB-67 Financial Reporting for Pension Plans - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25 is 
effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2013. 

b. GASB-68 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 
27 is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2014. 

The impact of these statements on the Municipality's basic financial statements has not yet been 
determined. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE- GENERAL FUND 
(SEE NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

REVENUES: 

Property taxes 
Municipal license tax 
Fines and forfeiture 
Licenses, permits and other local taxes 
Charges for services 
Intergovernmental 
Interest 
Rent of property 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND OTHER 
FINANCING USES: 
Current: 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Health and welfare 
Culture and recreation 
Economic development 
Operating transfer to other funds 

Total expenditures, encumbrances and other 
financing uses 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY} OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Explanation of Differences: 

Sources/inflows of resources: 

Budgeted Amount 
Original Final 

s 4,191,201 $ 4,191,201 
8,904,009 8,904,009 

170,000 170,000 
2,680,000 2,680,000 

65,000 65,000 
4,944,160 4,944,160 

340,000 340,000 
4,800 4,800 

290,000 290,000 

21,589,170 21,589,170 

10,956,100 10,956,100 
1,488,497 1,488,497 
4,379,755 4,379,755 
2,708,200 2,708,200 
1, 123,942 1,123,942 

288,326 288,326 
644,350 644,350 

$ 21,589,170 $21,589,170 

Actual amounts (budgetary basis)'available for appropriation' from the budgetary comparison schedule 
Differences-budget to GAAP 

Actual Amounts 
(Budgetary Basis) 

(See Note 1) 

$ 4,586,388 
8,024,247 

61,047 
576,804 
33,258 

4,944,160 
234,954 

2,801 
220,072 

18,683,731 

9,801 ,153 
1,435,000 
4,068,390 
2,552,288 
1,059,829 

261 ,676 
495904 

19,674,240 

~ (990,509) 

Total revenues and other financing sources as reported in the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances 

Uses/outflows of resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis)'total charges to appropriations' from the budgetary comparison schedule 

Differences-budget to GAAP: 
Non-budgeted expenditures 
Prior year encumbrances recorded as current year expenditures for GAAP basis 
Current year encumbrances recorded as expenditures for budgetary purposes 

Total expenditures and other financing uses as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 395, 187 
(879,762) 
(108,953) 

(2, 103, 196) 
(31,742) 

(105,046) 
(1,999) 

(69,928} 

(2,905,439) 

1, 154,947 
53,497 

311,365 
155,912 
64, 113 
26,650 

148 446 

1,914,930 

$ (990,509} 

$ 18,683,731 
132.893 

$18 816 624 

$19,674,240 

277,367 
43,940 

170.986) 

1.19..924 561 
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MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

1. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Budgetary Control 

The Municipality's annual budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting, which is not in 
accordance with USGAAP, and represents departmental appropriations recommended by the Mayor 
and approved by the Municipal Legislature prior to the beginning of the fiscal year. Amendments to the 
budget require the approval of the Municipal Legislature. Transfers of appropriations within the budget, 
known as Mayor's Resolutions, do not require the approval of the Municipal Legislature. 

The Municipality prepares its annual budget including the operations of the general fund. For 
budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounting is used. The encumbrances (i.e., purchase orders, 
contracts) are considered expenditures when incurred. For USGAAP reporting purposes, 
encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do not 
constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be honored during the subsequent 
year. 

The unencumbered balance of any appropriation at the end of the fiscal year will lapse at the end of 
such fiscal year. Other appropriations, mainly capital project appropriations, are continuing accounts 
for which the Municipal Legislature has authorized that an unspent balance from the prior year be 
carried forward and made available for current spending. 

The annual budget as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule-General Fund is the budget 
ordinance at June 30, 2012 representing the original budget. There were no supplemental 
appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2012. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Federal Grantor/Pass-through 
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE: 

Pass-through Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Department of Education: 

Child and Adult Care Food Program 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSIGN AND URBAN 
DEVELOPMENT: 

Direct Program: 
CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster; Community 
Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 
Community Development Block Grants -
ARRA Entitlement Grants (CDBG-R) 
(Recovery Act Funded) 

Direct Program: 
Supportive Housing Program 

Direct Program: 
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 

Pass-through Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Municipality of San Juan: 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

10.558 

14.218 

14.253 

14.235 

14.871 

Housing Opportunities for Person with Aids 14.241 

Pass-through Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Family Department: 

Emergency Shelter Grants Program 14.231 

Pass-through Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Family 
Department: 

Homeless Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing 
(Recovery Act Funded) 14.257 

Total U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development 

Pass-through 
Entity Identifying 

Number 

Not Available 

Not Available 

ESG-04-DC-720001 

Not Available 

Expenditures 

$ 17,003 

17,003 

1,375,410 

117,497 

102,664 

1,192,193 

17,432 

52,917 

264,950 

3,123,063 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Federal Pass-through 
Federal Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Entity Identifying 
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Ex~enditures 

U.S. DEPARTMENT TRANSPORTATION: 

Direct Programs: 
ARRA - Urbanized Area Formula 20.509 104,439 

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico -
Traffic Safety Commission: 

State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 10-03-08 6,435 

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 110,874 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY: 

Direct Program: 
Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant 
Program (EECBG) 81.1 28 165,572 

Total U.S. Department of Energy 165,572 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES: 

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico -
Family Department (ACUDEN): 

Alzheimer's Disease Demonstrations Grants 93.051 Not Available 164,989 
Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 Not Available 114,272 
Family Violence Prevention and Services 93.671 Not Available 37,618 
ARRA - Child Care and Development Block Grant 
(Recovery Act Funded) 93.713 Not Available 3,761 

- Total U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services 320,640 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY: 
Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Governor Authorized Representative (GAR): 

Homeland Security Grant 96.067 2005-GFT54009 54,600 
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 97.036 Not Available 459,806 
Hazard Mitigation Grant 97.039 Not Available 20, 100 

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 534,506 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 4,271,658 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION: 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the 
Municipality of Cidra and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The basis of 
accounting is the same used to prepare the fund financial statements. The information in this Schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMS Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 

2. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS: 

Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule are included in the Special Revenue Fund (02), Other 
Governmental Funds in the Municipality's fund financial statements and in the Proprietary Fund - Business 
Type Activity - Enterprise Fund. The reconciliation between the expenditures in the funds financial 
statements and the disbursements in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is as follows: 

Special Other 
Revenue Fund Governmental 

Description (02) Funds Total 

Per Schedule of Expenditures 
of Federal Awards $ 1,362,023 $ 2,909,635 $ 4,271 ,658 

Non federal programs 
expenditures 4,446,728 6,856 4,453,584 

Total expenditures in the basic financial 
statements $ 5,808,751 $ 2,916,491 $ 8,725,242 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDmNG STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and the Municipal Legislature 
Municipality of Cidra 
Cldra, Puerto Rico 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of the Municipality of Cidra, Puerto Rico, as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements and 
have issued our report thereon dated January 18, 2013, which was unqualffied. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
The Municipality of Cldra is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
financial reporting. In plaming and perfonning our audit, we considered the Municipality of Cldra's internal 
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures tor the purpose of expressing 
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Municipality of Cidra's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipality of Cidra's internal control over financial reporting. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting 
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all 
deficiencies, signfficant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as described in 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs we identified certain deficiencies in internal 
control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of perfonning their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questions costs as ~em 12-01 to be material 
weaknesses. 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDfflNG STANDARDS (CONTINUED) 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in i'lternal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be signtticant deficiencies, 
as defined above. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Municipality of Cidra's financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of 
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Municipality of Cidra in a separate letter 
dated March 19, 2013. 

The Municipality of Cidra's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the Municipality of Cidra's response and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and federal awarding agencies and 
pass- hrough entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

f{fv;~1f:4/SL 
San Juan, Puerto Rico 
March 19, 2013 

Stamp No. 2632120 of the Puerto Rico 
Society of Certified Public Accountants 
was affixed to the record copy of this report. 

11 1 AJf:] I L6pez-Vega, CPA, PSC 

Certified Public Accountants I Management Advisors 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A 
DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and the Municipal Legislature 
Municipality of Cidra 
Cidra, Puerto Rico 

Compliance 
We have audited the Municipality of Cidra's compliance of the with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the OMB Circular A· 133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of Municipality of Cidra's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. The Municipality 
of Cidra's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of 
Municipality of Cidra's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Municipality of Cidra's 
compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Municipality of Cidra's 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not 
provide a legal determination on Municipality of Cidra's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, Municipality of Cidra complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2012. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance 
with those requirements, which are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A· 133 and which 
are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items, 12-02 through 12-03. 

63 
Calle Parani #1686, El Cerezal, San Juan, P .R. 00926-3144 - Tel. (787) 777-8 044 I Pax (787) 764- 9377 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A 
DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 (CONTINUED) 

Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of Municipaltty of Cidra is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal 
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Municipality of Cldra's internal control over 
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to 
determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and 
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of Municipaltty of Cidra's internal control over compliance. 

A defk;;ency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be deficiencies, signtticant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies 
in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we 
identttied certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be significant deficiencies 
as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questions costs as Items 12-02 through 12-03. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe 
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A 
DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 (CONTINUED) 

Municipality of Cidra's responses to the findings identHied in our audit are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit Municipality of Cidra's responses and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses. 

We also noted matters involving the internal control over compliance and certain immaterial instance of 
noncompliance, which we have reported to management of the Municipality of Cidra in a separate letter dated 
March 19, 2013. 

The Municipality of Cidra's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the Municipality of Cidra's response and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and federal awarding agencies and 
pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

~~A~°:s~~L 
San Juan, Puerto Rico 
March 19, 2013 

Stamp No. 2632121 of the Puerto Rico 
Society of Certified Public Accountants 
was affixed to the record copy of this report. 

I I Im'! 'L6pez-Vega,CPA,PSC 

Certified PublicAccoumanls I Man:1gementAdvisors 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness identified? Yes X 

Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be 
material weaknesses? Yes 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes 

Federal awards 

Internal Control over major programs: 

Material weakness identified? Yes 

Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be 
material weaknesses? Yes X 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance 
for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with Circular 
A-133, Section .510(a)? 

Identification of major programs: 

Unqualified 

Yes X 

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

CDBG Entitlement Grants Cluster: 

No 

None reported X 

No X 

No X 

None reported 

No 

14.218 
14.253 

Community Development Block Grant - Entitlement Grant 
Community Development Block Grant - ARRA Entitlement Grants 

14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

$ 300,000 

Yes No X 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Section II - Financial Statements Findings 

(The following finding is considered to be a reportable condition and a material weakness (MW) and is labeled 
as such.) 

Finding Reference 12·01 

Requirement Operating deficit of general fund (MW) 

Statement of Condition The Municipality's internal control relating to the Budgeting function does not 
adequately prevent management from incurring expenditures in excess of 
appropriated funds. The Municipality closed with an accumulated unassigned (deficit) 
fund balance of $1,053,391. The deficit was caused by the overstatement of estimated 
revenues accounts. 

Criteria Article 7.011, Section (a) of Autonomous Municipal Act (Law 81) establishes that if the 
Municipal close its operations on deficit it must provide for sufficient resources to cover 
it during the next fiscal year. Section (b) establishes among other things, that provides 
that accrued deficit in the Municipality, by public debt, will be amortized in a period of 
40 years. The equivalent amortization amount will be established in an expense 
account in the annual budget known as accrued deficit which will be indicated in the 
chart of accounts. 

Cause of Condition 

Article 8.004 (b) of the Municipalities Law establishes that the Municipality cannot 
obligate or spend funds in excess of the ensuing fiscal year. No amount shall be 
expended or obligated in a given fiscal year of if exceeds its budgeted or authorized 
amounts by the Municipal Legislation. 

Section 3 of the revised regulation over Basic Standards for Municipalities of Puerto 
Rico (The regulation) states that it must be special care to prepare the revenues 
estimates so these do not results in budget appropriations in excess of available 
resources. 

The overstatement of estimated revenues accounts caused that the Municipality 
operated with a deficit. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Section II - Financial Statements Findings 

Finding Reference 

Effect of Condition 

Recommendation 

Questioned Costs 

Management Response 
and Corrective Action 

12-01 (Continued) 

The Municipality did not comply with the Article 7.011 , Section (a), Article 8.004 (b) 
and Section 3 of the revised regulation over basic Standard for Municipalities of 
Puerto Rico. The continued occurrence of this situation could result in possible 
significant limitations on available funds and eventual reduction or elimination of 
municipal services since future revenues will need to be used to pay for 
accumulated liabilities. 

We recommend management to evaluate the adequacy of the provision for deficit 
reserve accounts in the next budget. Also, the Municipality's officers must evaluate 
the negative variances between budgeted revenues and actual revenues trend to 
reduce the budgeted expenses by department (quarterly allocation process) and to 
avoid future operational deficits at end of year. 

None 

The Municipality's Management concurs with the finding. The Municipality will take 
adequate measurements in order to strengthen its procedures to assure to control 
the expenditures and reduce deficit. 

Implementation Date: April 1, 2013 

Responsible Person: Maritza Tolentino Torres 
Finance Director 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Section Ill • Major Federal Award Program Findings and Questioned Costs 

Finding Reference 12-02 

Program 

Requirement 

CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster; Community Development Block Grant­
Entitlement Program (CFDA No. 14.218) & Community Development Block 
Grants-ARRA Entitlement Grants (CDBG-R) (Recovery Act Funded) (CFDA No. 
14.253); U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Special Test - Housing Rehabilitation Test 

Statement of Condition During our examination of twelve (12) participant's files we found the following 
situations: 

Criteria 

a) The participant exceeded the time limit required by the program to finish the 
repairs. (8 cases) 

b) The deduction of the medical expenses was not documented, resulting in errors 
of the income calculation for eligibility. (8 cases) 

c) The income calculations made by the program did not agree with our 
calculations. (3 cases) 

d) The rehabilitation was still in process during our audit (February and March 
2013, date of the last inspections) (4 cases) 

e) In three (3) cases, funds were used to construct a new housing unit out of the 
original footprint of the dwelling. The CDBG Action Plan in its Housing 
Rehabilitation Program states that this assistance will be used to rebuild the 
substandard housing unit into a sound, safe and sanitary dwelling bringing up 
the quality of life into the family dwelling. No evidence of Governmental Agencies 
approval of structure construction and electrical permits were found. 

f) In one (1) case the housing unit was not properly evaluated for the possible 
rehabilitation, resulting in the misusing of construction materials donated by the 
CDBG Program. 

24 CFR, Section 570.506 states that when CDBG- Entitlement Grants funds are 
used for rehabilitation, the grantee must assure that the work is properly completed 
and appropriate documentation is maintained. CFR 24, Section 91.220, states that 
all activities that a grantee undertakes during their CDBG program year must be 
identified in an Action Plan or in an amended Action Plan. Also, 24 CFR section 
570.202 (b) (2) states that labor, materials, and other costs of rehabilitation of 
properties, including repair directed toward an accumulation of deferred 
maintenance, replacement of principal fixtures and components of existing 
structures, installation of security devices, including smoke detectors and dead bolt 
locks, and renovation through alterations, additions to, of enhancement of existing 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Section Ill • Major Federal Award Program Findings and Questioned Costs 

Finding Reference 

Criteria 

Cause of Condition 

Effect of Condition 

Recommendation 

12-02 (Continued) 

structures and improvements, abatement of asbestos hazards (and other 
contaminants) in buildings and improvements that may be undertaken singly, or in 
combination. 

The program has not established adequate internal control procedures to assure that 
rehabilitations are duly completed as required by regulations and appropriate 
documentation is maintained. 

The Municipality is not in compliance with 24 CFR, Section 570.506, 24 CFR, 
Section 570.202 and CFR 24, Section 91.220. 

We recommend the Program to establish the following procedures: 

a. Assure that the participant complete the rehabilitation process within the 
period established in the contract. 

b. Assure that all participant files include the same eligibility determination 
and adequate evidence of family income, medical expenses and other 
related data. 

c. Assure that the participants use the construction materials for the 
rehabilitation of their housing units and not for construction of new 
housing units. 

d. Assure to perform an accurate initial evaluation of the housing unit, 
contemplating the feasibility of the rehabilitation. 

We also recommend clarifying the income determination process and the possible 
allowances and deductions applicable to each case. 

Questioned Costs None 

Management Response 
and Corrective Action The Municipality's Management concurs with the finding. The Federal Director will 

establish communication with the program staff in order to strengthen its program 
procedures to assure the Municipality be in compliance with the Special Test­
Housing Rehabilitation. 

Implementation Date: April 1, 2013 

Responsible Person: George Pereira 
Federal Program Department Director 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Section Ill • Major Federal Award Program Findings and Questioned Costs 

Finding Reference 12-03 

Program 

Requirement 

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program (CFDA No. 14.871); U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Eligibility Test 

Statement of Condition We performed an eligibility test and examined a sample of fifteen (15) participant 
...... files. The following summarize the deficiencies found: 

Criteria 

a) In one (1) participant's file, a reexamination was not performed at the time 
income was reported by the participant. 

b) In three (3) cases, the Family Report (form HUD 50058) presents the following 
errors in HAP calculations: 

• In two (2) cases the participants' income calculation were incorrect, 
• In one (1) case the payment standard and utility allowance was 

incorrect. 

c) In one (1) case, the participant's file did not include evidence of the birth 
certificate of two (2) members of the family, neither the photo of family 
composition. 

d) In six (6) cases the value of assets verification was not included in file. 

e) In five (5) cases the Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) corresponding to 
reexaminations and re-certifications of family composition and income, were not 
in file. In one (1) case the EIV was not signed either by the PHA or the 
participant. 

n In one (1) case the documents related with fiscal year 11-12, were not available 
for our review. 

g) In one (1) case the medical expenses allowance was calculated incorrectly, 
causing errors in the HAP calculation. 

CFR 24 Section 982.516 (e) states that family income must include income of all 
family members, including family members not related by blood or marriage. If any 
new family member is added, family income must include any income of the 
additional family member. The PHA must conduct a reexamination to determine such 
additional income, and must make appropriate adjustments in the housing 
assistance payment. CFR 24, Section 5.609 establish that as a condition of 
admission or continued occupancy, the tenant must provide all necessary 
information and documentation required and tenant's authorization to verify income 
eligibility. 24 CFR Subpart K Section 982.516 (a), established that PHA responsibility 
for reexamination of family income and composition at least annually, (2) the PHA 
must obtain and document in the tenant file third-party verification. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Section 111 - Major Federal Award Program Findings and Questioned Costs 

Finding Reference 

Criteria 

12-03 (Continued) 

Also, the 24 CFR section 982.516 (a) (2) states that the PHA must obtain and 
document in the tenant file third party verification of the following factors, or 
document in the tenant file why third party verification was not available: (i) Reported 
family annual income; (ii) the value of assets; (iii) Expenses related to deductions 
from annual income; and (iv) Other factors that affect the determination of adjusted 
income. 

In addition, Code of Federal Regulations 24, Section 5.233 (a) (2), states that 
processing entities must use HUD's EIV system as a third-party source to verify 
tenant employment and income information, in accordance with §5.236 

Cause of Condition The Program has no effective monitoring review process for the program internal 
quality control. 

Effect of Condition The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations 24 Section 
982.516, CFR 24 Section 5.609 and CFR 24 Section 5.233. 

Recommendation The Program should strengthen its internal quality control procedures to monitor 
performance, ensure compliance with these requirements and provide the necessary 
training to the staff on documentation and verification process. 

Questioned Costs None 

Management Response 
and Corrective Action The Municipality's management concurs with the finding. During this fiscal year 

2012-2013, the program staff will be working to correct the situations commented in 
the finding. 

Implementation Date: April 1, 2013 

Responsible Person: George Pereira 
Federal Program Department Director 

72 



Original 
Finding CFDA 
Number No. 

11-01 14.218 

11-02 14.218 

11-03 14.871 

11-04 14.871 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEARS AUDIT FINDINGS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

Current Status of Prior Year Audit Federal Award Findings · Part Ill Findings 
(As required by OMB Circular A-133) 

During our Davis-Bacon Act test we identified the following exce12tions: a) In four (4) cases 
the 12ayrolls were not monitored for comQliance with Qrevailing wage rate neither 
signed by the 12rogram's ins12ector. b) In two (2} construction Qrojects, the contractor 
did not submit on a timely manner all the reguired weekly Qayrolls. 

Full corrective action has been taken. 

During our SQecial Test of Housing Rehabilitation we examined twelve {12) 
12artici12anf s files and identified the following exceQtions: a} The 12artici12ant exceeded 
the time limit reguired by the Qrogram to finish the re12airs (7 cases}. b} The deduction 
of the medical ex12enses was not documented (1 case}. c} The income calculations 
made by the Qrogram did not agree with our calculations (7 cases}. d} The 
rehabilitation was still in 12rocess during our audit (Februar.y 2012, date of the last 
ins12ection} (4 cases}. 

No corrective action was taken. See current year finding number 12-02. 

During our Eligibility test we reviewed fifteen (15} QarticiQanfs files and identified the 
following situations: a} In one (1} QarticiQant's file, the Reasonable Rent form was not 
comQleted when the QarticiQant moved from one housing unit to another. b} In three 
(3} cases, the Family ReQort (form HUD 50058} Qresented the following errors in HAP 
calculations: In two (2} cases the QarticiQants' income were not included for the HAP 
calculations, In one (1} case the income calculation was incorrect and the allowance 
Qer deQendent was included when the Qerson was an adult and no evidence of 
college studies was found in file since 2008. c} In four (4} cases, the QarticiQant's file 
did not include evidence of the following: General assistance certification (3 cases}, 
Child sui:mort debt certification (3 cases}, MuniciQal Revenue Collection Center debt 
certification (4 cases} and Income verification evidence (2 cases}. d} In two (2} 
QarticiQant's files, the PHA failed to document whether deficiencies found in the last 
unit ins12ection were corrected. 

No corrective action was taken. See current year finding number 12-03. 

During our HAP Register test we identified the following exceQtion: a} the Program did 
not maintain a HAP register in the form reguired by HUD. The PHA is reguired to 
maintain a HAP contract register or similar record that must 12rovide information as to 
the name and address of the family, the name and address of the owner, dwelling unit 
size, the beginning date of the lease term, the monthly rent Qayable to the owner, 
monthly rent Qayable by the family to the owner, and the monthly HAP. The record 
shall also orovide data as to the date the familv vacates and the number of davs the 
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Original 
Finding 
Number 

10-01 

10-02 

10-03 

10-04 

COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEARS AUDIT FINDINGS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

CFDA Current Status of Prior Year Audit Federal Award Findings - Part Ill Findings 
No. (As required by OMB Circular A-133) 

unit is vacant if any. 

Full corrective action has been taken. 

14.218 During our ReQorting test we identified the following exceQtions: a} For the year ended 
6/30/10 the accounting records {administrative cost} did not agree with the Financial 
Quarterly ReQort by ~2,901.35. b} SF-425, Federal Financial ReQort {cash status only} 
was not submitted for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. 

Full corrective action has been taken. 

14.871 During our Eligibility test we reviewed fifteen {15} QarticiQant's files and identified the 
following situations: a} In four {4} cases, the lnsQection Checklist forms were not 
marked as Pass, Fail or Inconclusive. b} In one (1} QarticiQant's file, the Reasonable 
Rent form was not comQleted when the QarticiQant changed from one housing unit to 
another on 2008. c} In four (4} cases, the PHA/Tenant Certification is not signed by 
PHA staff. d} In one (1} case, the QarticiQant's file did not include evidence of uQdated 
Good Behavior Certificate and family comQosition Qhoto. e} In two {2} QarticiQant's 
files, the PHA failed to document whether deficiencies found in the last insQection 
were corrected. fl One (1} QarticiQant's file did not include the lnsQection Form for 
fiscal year 09-10. g} One {1} QarticiQant's file did not include the Family ReQort Form 
{50058} for fiscal year 09-10. 

No corrective action was taken. See current year finding number 12-03. 

14.871 During our Housing Quality Standards test we reviewed fifteen (15} QarticiQant's files 
and identified the following situations: In six (6} files examined, we noted that the 
insQection reQort do not indicate the final Qass date. After the deficiencies were 
corrected. a} In one {1} file examined, the insQection reQort does not have the initials 
of the lnsQector Officer that certifies the date on which the deficiencies were 
corrected. b} In one {1} file examined, the original insQection and re-insQection forms 
were not in the QarticiQanf s file. 

Full corrective action has been taken. 

14.871 During our SQecial Test - DeQQsito[V Agreements we noted that the Section 8 
Housing Choice Vouchers Program did not comQly with the comQliance reguirement of 
DeQosito[Y Agreements. The PHA is reguired to enter into deQosita[V agreement with 
their financial institutions in the form reguired by HUD. {Form HUD-51999}. 

Full corrective action has been taken. 
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Noemi Padilla Rivera 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Eunice Sosa 
Tuesday, April 02, 2013 8:56 AM 
Noemi Padilla Rivera; Reymound Vega 
FW: Single Audit Cidra 
SA Report CIDRA 2012 FINAL.pdf 

--- - -Original Message- - ---
From: Li l liana Rodriguez-Ortiz [mailto:lrodriguez@lopezvegacpa-pr . com] 
Sent: Monday, April 01, 2013 5:05 PM 
To: Eunice Sosa 
Subject: Single Audit Cidra 

Adjunto Single Audit Cidra. 
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